
From: geetha srikantan
To: Planning Commission
Cc: geetha srikantan
Subject: Resident Input for RPP Study Session
Date: Wednesday, May 27, 2020 5:34:40 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Be cautious of opening attachments and clicking
on links.
________________________________

Dear Planning Commission Members, City Council Members,

I am in full support of the Residential Input for RPP Study Session and the findings, recommendations, therein.
I respectfully urge City Council, Planning and Transportation Department authorities to seriously consider all the
details including in the above Study session to acknowledge and act with the recommendations set forth in this
study.

Thank you,
(Dr.) Geetha Srikantan

mailto:gsrikantan@yahoo.com
mailto:Planning.Commission@cityofpaloalto.org
mailto:gsrikantan@yahoo.com


From: Jessica Resmini
To: Planning Commission
Cc: Nickless, Greg@HCD; Council, City
Subject: ADU Ordinance: Setbacks
Date: Wednesday, May 27, 2020 12:00:45 PM
Attachments: RE ADU lot line setbacks.pdf

ADU setbacks.pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Be cautious
of opening attachments and clicking on links.

Dear Planning & Transportation Commission,

The City of Palo Alto staff and community has done a ton of exciting work on the ADU
ordinance regarding the new state laws. I have spent time reviewing the new draft shared on
5/22 with an HCD state official and there is still an area of conflict on setbacks. 

The drafted ordnance is in conflict with the state laws for two reasons:

1) The new ordinance requires attached ADUs to have 6’ setbacks (or be in compliance with
the main dwelling ordinance). 
2) The new ordinance requires a 16’ setback along streets.

Please see attached correspondence with HCD staff, "A local agency shall not require ADU
side or rear property line setbacks of more than 4’ whether attached or detached. A side-
property line includes a side-street property line.”

The State is very clear that we need to maximize the allowed buildable area on every site for
housing and reducing this buildable area by 2-12’ on lots is in direct conflict with the intent of
the new state laws. Per an email with state staff, "They may want more than 4’, but that is all
the legislature and governor have allowed. They are not allowed, by state law, to require an
ADU to be more than 4’ from a side or rear property line, including a side street."

Please email Greg Nickless with HCD directly with any follow up questions as you review the
new ordinance (specifically page 17).

Thank you,
Jess 
-- 
ADU|Collective 
Build smart for flexible living.

Jessica Resmini
Architect, LEED AP
Mobile +1 415 823 3213
Company Site | Linkedin

mailto:jessica@aducollective.com
mailto:Planning.Commission@cityofpaloalto.org
mailto:Greg.Nickless@hcd.ca.gov
mailto:city.council@cityofpaloalto.org
https://www.aducollective.com/
https://www.linkedin.com/in/jessicaresmini/



From: Nickless, Greg@HCD Greg.Nickless@hcd.ca.gov
Subject: RE: ADU lot line setbacks


Date: May 19, 2020 at 12:47 PM
To: Jessica Resmini jessica@aducollective.com


Greg Nickless
Housing Policy Specialist
Housing & Community Development
2020 W. El Camino Avenue, Suite 500 | Sacramento, CA 95833
Phone: 916.274.6244


Jessica-
A local agency shall not require ADU side or rear property line setbacks of more than 4’, whether
attached or detached.
-Greg
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
From: Jessica Resmini <jessica@aducollective.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, May 19, 2020 12:43 PM
To: Amy French <Amy.French@CityofPaloAlto.org>; Jonathan Lait <Jonathan.Lait@cityofpaloalto.org>;
Nickless, Greg@HCD <Greg.Nickless@hcd.ca.gov>; John Smale <john.adrian.smale@gmail.com>
Cc: Russ Reich <Russ.Reich@CityofPaloAlto.org>; Garrett Sauls <Garrett.Sauls@CityofPaloAlto.org>
Subject: Re: ADU lot line setbacks
 
Hi Amy,


I tried to decipher your code references below, but I was not able to. I am getting very mixed
messages from the state and city. 


Please let me know when you, the city attorney and and Jonathan Lait are able to have a
conference call with Greg Nickless form HCD and the owner.
 
Thanks,
Jess 
-- 
ADU|Collective 
Build smart for flexible living.
 
Jessica Resmini
Architect, LEED AP
Mobile +1 415 823 3213
Company Site [aducollective.com] | Linkedin [linkedin.com]
 
________________________


Jessica-
A local agency may not require a side or rear lot line setback of more than four (4’), whether the
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
ADU is attached or detached.
-Greg
 


 
-- 
ADU|Collective 
Build smart for flexible living.
 
Jessica Resmini
Architect, LEED AP
Mobile +1 415 823 3213
Company Site [aducollective.com] | Linkedin [linkedin.com]


On May 19, 2020, at 12:06 PM, French, Amy <Amy.French@CityofPaloAlto.org> wrote:
 
The required setback depends on whether your client is relying on Gov. Code 65852.2(e)(1)
(A) / PAMC 18.42.040(a)(5).  This would mean they are looking to ignore the requirements
of PAMC 18.42.040 (a)(3), (a)(4), (a)(7), and (a)(8) in building the attached ADU.  If so, then
they must comply with base zone setbacks.
 
If not, (i.e. they will comply PAMC 18.42.040(a)(3), (a)(4), and (a)(7)), then they can build to
a 4 foot setback.
 
 


       
Amy French| Chief Planning Official
250 Hamilton Avenue | Palo Alto, CA 94301
D: 650.329.2336| E: amy.french@cityofpaloalto.org
Please think of the environment before printing this email – Thank you!
The City of Palo Alto is doing its part to reduce the spread of COVID-
19.  We have successfully transitioned most of our employees to a
remote work environment. We remain available to you via email,
phone, and virtual meetings during our normal business hours.
 


 
 
From: Jessica Resmini <jessica@aducollective.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, May 19, 2020 11:51 AM
To: Reich, Russ <Russ.Reich@CityofPaloAlto.org>; John Smale
<john.adrian.smale@gmail.com>; John Smale <jsmale@mitty.com>
Cc: French, Amy <Amy.French@CityofPaloAlto.org>; Sauls, Garrett
<Garrett.Sauls@CityofPaloAlto.org>
Subject: Re: ADU lot line setbacks
 
Hi guys,
 
I haven’t heard confirmation on this. Any update? CCing the client here so he can keep tabs
on timeline. They are ready to move forward.
 
Assuming the state law is what we should follow and that an ADU may be 4’ from the
property line no matter if it’s attached/detached, but want to be in communication about any
questions.
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


On May 11, 2020, at 12:41 PM, Reich, Russ <Russ.Reich@cityofpaloalto.org>
wrote:
 
Hello Jessica,
Thank you for the HCD perspective.  We will correspond with our Attorney and
get back to you.  All these ADU regulations are so much fun.  I can’t wait to see
how things come down on this one.  
 
Thanks,
 
<image001.png>Russ Reich
Planning Manager
Planning and Development Services
(650) 617-3119 | russ.reich@cityofpaloalto.org
www.cityofpaloalto.org [cityofpaloalto.org]
<image015.png> [facebook.com]   <image016.png>
[twitter.com]   <image017.jpg> [instagram.com]   <image018.png>
[medium.com]   <image019.png> [linkedin.com]


The City of Palo Alto is doing its part to reduce the spread of COVID-19. 
We have successfully transitioned most of our employees to a remote
work environment. We remain available to you via email, phone, and
virtual meetings during our normal business hours.
 
 
 
 
 
 
              
 
               
 
From: Jessica Resmini [mailto:jessica@aducollective.com] 
Sent: Monday, May 11, 2020 12:36 PM
To: Reich, Russ; French, Amy; Sauls, Garrett
Subject: Fwd: ADU lot line setbacks
 
Could you connect your City Attorney with Greg from HCD below?
 
Thanks,
Jess 


-- 
ADU|Collective 
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<image014.jpg> Greg Nickless
Housing Policy Specialist
Housing & Community Development
2020 W. El Camino Avenue, Suite 500
| Sacramento, CA 95833
Phone: 916.274.6244


Smart building for flexible living.


 
Jessica Resmini
Architect, LEED AP
Mobile +1 415 823 3213
Company Site [aducollective.com] | Linkedin [linkedin.com]
 


Begin forwarded message:


From: "Nickless, Greg@HCD" <Greg.Nickless@hcd.ca.gov>
Date: May 11, 2020 at 12:28:25 PM PDT
To: Jessica Resmini <jessica@aducollective.com>
Subject: ADU lot line setbacks


​ 
Jessica-
A local agency may not require a side or rear lot line setback of
more than four (4’), whether the ADU is attached or detached.
-Greg
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
From: Jessica Resmini <jessica@aducollective.com> 
Sent: Monday, May 11, 2020 12:19 PM
To: Reich, Russ <Russ.Reich@cityofpaloalto.org>; Nickless,
Greg@HCD <Greg.Nickless@hcd.ca.gov>
Cc: French, Amy <Amy.French@cityofpaloalto.org>; Sauls, Garrett
<Garrett.Sauls@cityofpaloalto.org>
Subject: Re: 160 Lois Lane
 
Hi Russ,


This is all over my head. I’m looping Greg Nickless with HCD in. 



http://www.hcd.ca.gov/
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Per my understanding of the state law, a required side or rear setback
of over 4’ is not in compliance with statue ADU law (Gov. Code
Section 65852.2(a)(1)(D)(vii), (c)(2)(C) or (e)(1)(B)), regardless of if
it’s attached or detached. 


Jess 
-- 
ADU|Collective 


Smart building for flexible living.


 
Jessica Resmini
Architect, LEED AP
Mobile +1 415 823 3213
Company Site [aducollective.com] | Linkedin [linkedin.com]
 


On May 11, 2020, at 10:03 AM, Reich, Russ
<Russ.Reich@cityofpaloalto.org> wrote:


Hello Jessica,
It is my understanding that an attached ADU is required
to follow the same setbacks as the residence that it is
attached to.  This would result in a six or eight foot side
yard setback, depending on the zoning of the property.  
 
If you believe that Palo Alto’s municipal code is in
conflict with State law, please provide the particular
State code section in question and I would be happy to
forward it to our City Attorney for review.  
 
Best,
 
<image013.png>
Russ Reich
Planning Manager
Planning and Development Services
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Planning and Development Services
(650) 617-3119 | russ.reich@cityofpaloalto.org
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The City of Palo Alto is doing its part to reduce the
spread of COVID-19.  We have successfully
transitioned most of our employees to a remote
work environment. We remain available to you via
email, phone, and virtual meetings during our
normal business hours.
 
 
 
 
 
 
              
 
               
 
From: Jessica Resmini [mailto:jessica@aducollective.com] 
Sent: Saturday, May 09, 2020 2:58 PM
To: French, Amy; Sauls, Garrett; Reich, Russ; McKay, Scott
Subject: Re: 160 Lois Lane
 
Hi guys,
 
Not sure who to follow up with, but I’m wondering who
might be able to look into the below question. My
understanding from the state laws is that an attached or
detached ADU can have a 4’ setback. I’m working on a
project where the client is proposing an attached ADU,
but want to be able to give them good direction. Could
you point me in the right direction of who to talk to?
 
Thanks,
Jess 
-- 
ADU|Collective 
Build smart for flexible living.
 
Jessica Resmini
Architect, LEED AP
Mobile +1 415 823 3213
Company Site [aducollective.com] | Linkedin
[linkedin.com]
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On Apr 11, 2020, at 9:44 AM, Jessica Resmini
<jessica@aducollective.com> wrote:
 
Hi Amy and Garrett,
 
These are crazy times, I hope you both are doing okay. Question for
you about attached ADUs...
 
 
RE: Setbacks for attached ADU? Scott mentioned Palo Alto is
requiring a 6’ setback for attached ADUs.
 
Can you double check the set back requirement for attached ADU?
Per my understanding of the state law, a required side or rear
setback of more than 4’ is not in compliance with statue ADU law
(Gov. Code Section 65852.2(a)(1)(D)(vii), (c)(2)(C) or (e)(1)(B)) and a
side or rear setback of 6’ shall not be required by a local agency. The
state does not differentiate between attached or detached. Please
refer to these sections as found in the ADU TA Memo attachment,
dated January 10, 2020. Let me know what I’m missing?
 
Jess 
 
-- 
ADU|Collective 


Smart building for flexible living.


 
Jessica Resmini
Architect, LEED AP
Mobile +1 415 823 3213
Company Site [aducollective.com] | Linkedin [linkedin.com]
 


Begin forwarded message:


From: "McKay, Scott"
<Scott.McKay@CityofPaloAlto.org>
Date: April 9, 2020 at 11:07:57 PM PDT
To: Jessica Resmini <jessica@aducollective.com>
Subject: RE:  160 Lois Lane


 
Hi Jessica,
 
              The Planning Impact Fees are
usually around $9,000+/- and are due prior
to building permit issuance. The exact
amount isn’t calculated until the application
is submitted. All the attached ADUs I have
reviewed had had to meet the same
setbacks as the primary residence. I would
recommend reaching out to Amy French if
you wanted to have her take a look at the
code.
 
 



mailto:jessica@aducollective.com

tel:+1%20415%20823%203213

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.aducollective.com/__;!!KIquKgc!Pgvw9U-7ALOZga79G599YO8EQkMMcz2eWvZiEPbcqj7LdUHhyNpnOGQpcumMOn6tmndVrg$

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.linkedin.com/in/jessicaresmini/__;!!KIquKgc!Pgvw9U-7ALOZga79G599YO8EQkMMcz2eWvZiEPbcqj7LdUHhyNpnOGQpcumMOn6d9U1S0w$

mailto:Scott.McKay@CityofPaloAlto.org

mailto:jessica@aducollective.com





 
<image001.png>  


Scott McKay, AICP | Planner | C&D Debris Diversion
Program Coordinator
ISA Certified Arborist | Planning & Development
Services
285 Hamilton Avenue | Palo Alto, CA 94301
T: 650.617.3113 |E: Scott.McKay@CityofPaloAlto.org
 
Please think of the environment before printing this
email – Thank you!


 
 
From: Jessica Resmini
<jessica@aducollective.com> 
Sent: Thursday, April 9, 2020 1:15 PM
To: McKay, Scott
<Scott.McKay@CityofPaloAlto.org>
Subject: Re: 160 Lois Lane
 
CAUTION: This email originated from
outside of the organization. Be
cautious of opening attachments and
clicking on links.


Hi Scott, 
 
Thanks for the call. These are crazy times.
Confirming our discussion below. 
 
Regarding the driveway:
-Coordinate with Urban forestry in regards
to the street tree (Engage Arborist) 
-Coordinate with Public
works/Utilities/Engineering regarding
proximity to fire hydrant.
 
In regards to parking:
When converting from 2 car garage to 1
car garage, ensure there is one parking
space provided outside of front yard
setback.
 
In regards to Attached 1000sf, 2 bedroom
ADU.
Impact fees will apply (over 750 sf). Can
you send updated impact fee amount?
Check setbacks for attached ADU, 4’ or 6’?
Can you double check the set back
requirement for attached ADU? Per my
understanding of the state law, a required
side or rear setback is not in compliance
with statue ADU law (Gov. Code Section
65852.2(a)(1)(D)(vii), (c)(2)(C) or (e)(1)(B)),
based on the situation. A side or rear
setback of 6’ shall not be required by a
local agency. Let me know what I’m
missing?
 
Thank you,
Jess 
-- 
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-- 
ADU|Collective 
Build smart for flexible living.
 
Jessica Resmini
Architect, LEED AP
Mobile +1 415 823 3213
Company Site
[aducollective.com] | Linkedin [linkedin.co
m]
 
 
 
 


On Apr 9, 2020, at 12:09 PM,
McKay, Scott
<Scott.McKay@CityofPaloAlto.
org> wrote:
 
Message received. I will try
calling.
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
Sent: Tuesday, April 7, 2020
12:47 PM
To: McKay, Scott
<Scott.McKay@CityofPaloAlto.
org>
Subject: Re: 160 Lois Lane
 
Hi Scott, 
 
I hope you are doing okay. I
have a proposed ADU project
I’m hoping to review with you
via zoom before I move
forward with the client. Is there
a time that might work for you?
I’ve attached a conceptual plan
that includes relocating the
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that includes relocating the
driveway location along a
rolled curb street front to the
north and relocating the garage
door. Let me know.
 
Thanks,
Jess 
-- 
ADU|Collective 
Build smart for flexible living.
 
Jessica Resmini
Architect, LEED AP
Mobile +1 415 823 3213
Company Site
[aducollective.com] | Linkedin
[linkedin.com]
 


On Apr 7, 2020, at
10:44 AM, Reich,
Russ
<Russ.Reich@city
ofpaloalto.org>
wrote:
 
Hello Jessica,
I would
recommend
sending the plans
to the planner first,
and give them a
chance to
familiarize
themselves with
the proposal so the
zoom meeting can
be more effective. 
You are free to
reach out to any of
the staff that work
on ADU
applications but
this would typically
be Val, Carlos, and
Scott.  Please
keep in mind that
outside of a formal
building permit
plan submittal, any
courtesy review is
not going to be a
complete and
comprehensive
plan review and
there may be items
that are missed. 
 
Best,
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Best,
 
<image013.png>R
uss Reich
Planning
Manager
Planning and
Development
Services
(650) 617-3119
| russ.reich@cityof
paloalto.org
www.cityofpaloalto.
org [cityofpaloalto.
org]
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The City of Palo
Alto is doing its
part to reduce the
spread of COVID-
19.  We have
successfully
transitioned most
of our employees
to a remote work
environment. We
remain available
to you via email,
phone, and virtual
meetings during
our normal
business hours.
 
 
 
 
 
 
              
 
               
 
From: Jessica
Resmini
[mailto:jessica@aduco
llective.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, April
07, 2020 10:37 AM
To: Reich, Russ
Subject: 160 Lois
Lane
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Lane
 
CAUTION: This
email originated
from outside of
the
organization. Be
cautious of
opening
attachments and
clicking on
links.


Hi Russ, 
 
I hope your team is
staying safe and
healthy. I’m
wondering if I can
schedule a Zoom
meeting with a
planner to review a
proposed ADU
project at 160 Lois
Lane before I
finalize things with
the owner. Is there
a particular planner
I should reach out
to?
 
Thanks,
Jess
 
-- 
ADU|Collectiv
e 
Build smart for
flexible living.
 
Jessica Resmini
Architect, LEED
AP
Mobile +1 415 823
3213
Company
Site [aducollective.
com] | Linkedin [lin
kedin.com]
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ϯ 
ORD ϮϬϮϬ-Ϭϱ-ϭϵ ADU Revamp 


Table ϭ͗ UniƚƐ ReqƵiƌed ƚo Be Appƌoǀed Undeƌ Sƚaƚe Laǁ 


Single-Family Multi-Family
Conversion of 
Space Within 
an Existing 
Single-Family 
Home or 
Accessory 
Structure 


Construction 
of Attached 
ADU Within 
the Space of a 
Proposed 
Single-Family 
Home 


New 
Construction 
of Detached 
ADU  


Conversion of 
Non-Habitable 
Space Within 
Existing Multi-
family 
Dwelling 
Structure 


Conversion or 
Construction 
of Detached 
ADU 


Number of 
Units Allowedϭ ϭ (ADU or JADU) ϭ 


Ϯϱй of the 
existing units 
(at least one) 


Ϯ 


Minimum sizeϮ ϭϱϬ sf 
Maximum sizeϮ N/Aϯ ϴϬϬ sf N/A 


Setbacks 
N/A, if 


condition is 
sufficient for 


fire and safety 


Underlying 
zone standard 


for Single 
Family Home 


 
(ADU must be 
within space 


of Single-
Family Home) 


ϰ feet from 
interior lot 
lines; meet 
underlying 


zone standard 
for street 
setbacks 


N/A 


ϰ feet from 
interior yard 


lot lines; meet 
underlying 


zone standard 
for street 
setbacks 


Daylight Plane N/A N/A 
Maximum 
Height N/A ϭϲϰ N/A ϭϲϰ 


Parking None 


State Law 
Reference ϲϱϴϱϮ.Ϯ(e)(ϭ)(A) ϲϱϴϱϮ.Ϯ(e)(ϭ)(A) ϲϱϴϱϮ.Ϯ(e)(ϭ)(B) ϲϱϴϱϮ.Ϯ(e)(ϭ)(C) ϲϱϴϱϮ.Ϯ(e)(ϭ)(D) 


(ϭ) An attached or detached ADU may be built in conjunction with a JADU on a lot with an existing or 
proposed single family home. 


(Ϯ) Lofts where the height from the floor level to the underside of the rafter or finished roof surface is ϱ' or 
greater shall count t  


(ϯ) Up to ϭϱϬ sf may be added for ingress and egress. 
(ϰ) Units built in a flood zone are not entitled to any height extensions granted to the primary dwelling. 


 
(c) Development standards stated elsewhere in this Section or Title ϭϴ, including standards 


related to FAR, lot coverage, and privacy, shall not be considered in approval of ADUs or 
JADUs that qualify for approval under this section. 


 
(d) The establishment of accessory dwelling units and junior accessory dwelling units pursuant 


to this section shall not be conditioned on the correction of non-conforming zoning 
conditions; provided, however, that nothing in this section shall limit the authority of the 
Chief Building Official to require correction of building standards relating to health and 
safety. 


 
(e) The installation of fire sprinklers shall not be required in an accessory dwelling unit if 


sprinklers are not required for the primary residence. 
 
(f) Rental of any unit created pursuant to this section shall be for a term of ϯϬ days or more. 
 
(g) Attached units shall have independent exterior access from a proposed or existing single-


family dwelling. Except for JADUs, attached units shall not have an interior access point to 
the primary dwelling (e.g. hotel door or other similar feature/appurtenance). 


 
(h) Conversion of an existing accessory structure pursuant to Government Code section 


ϲϱϴϱϮ.Ϯ(e)(ϭ)(A) may include reconstruction in-place of a non-conforming structure, so long 
as the renovation of reconstruction does not increase the degree of non-compliance, such 
as increased height, envelope, or further intrusion into required setbacks. 
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
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From: Harris Barton
To: Planning Commission
Cc: Neilson Buchanan
Subject: RPP findings
Date: Wednesday, May 27, 2020 8:32:01 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Be cautious
of opening attachments and clicking on links.

Thanks to Neilson and all for putting this together in such a unique
time in our city’s life.
We can not attend the meeting but we are in FULL support of the RPP
Study and findings. We urge the City Council, planning and
transportation department to do their jobs and act with the
recommendations set fourth in the study.
Thanks
Harris and Megan Barton
Professorville Palo Alto

Sent from my iPad

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use
by the recipient and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that
any disclosure, copying, distribution or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly
prohibited and may be unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by
Mimecast Ltd, an innovator in Software as a Service (SaaS) for business. Providing a safer and more
useful place for your human generated data. Specializing in; Security, archiving and compliance. To find out
more Click Here.
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From: geetha srikantan
To: Michael Hodos; Sallyann Rudd; Mary Dimit; Mary Gallagher; Jan Merryweather; Tricia Dolkas; Leslie Caine;

Planning Commission; Vita Gorbunova; Elaine Meyer; Harris Barton; Meg Barton; Malcolm Roy Beasley; Mike
Griffin; Neilson Buchanan; geetha srikantan

Subject: Re: we need you
Date: Wednesday, May 27, 2020 8:06:24 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Be cautious of opening attachments and clicking
on links.
________________________________

Good morning,

Thanks to Neilson and all of you for putting together this really well-thought out document.

I won't be able to attend the meeting and can send in an email. Please let me know if the following text looks
readable:

"I am in full support of the Residential Input for RPP Study Session and the findings, recommendations, therein.
I respectfully urge City Council, Planning and Transportation Department authorities to seriously consider all the
details including in the above Study session to acknowledge and act with the recommendations set forth in this
study."

Who should I send it to?

thanks
geetha

On Tuesday, May 26, 2020, 02:43:17 PM PDT, Neilson Buchanan <cnsbuchanan@yahoo.com> wrote:

You are the ideal residents to speak for 2 min [or less] tomorrow night and support the direction of the report.  Can
we count on you?  We have written an excellent report to refine and protect existing RPPs. It is attached.

You can find instruction for making phone or zoom comments on the ptc agenda.  let me know if you cant find those
instructions.  See the link below.

If you are not able to make oral comments, please send a very short, supportive email to planning commission

planning.commission@cityofpaloalto.org

https://www.cityofpaloalto.org/civicax/filebank/documents/76832

Neilson Buchanan
155 Bryant Street
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Palo Alto, CA  94301

650 329-0484
650 537-9611 cell
cnsbuchanan@yahoo.com



From: Sonya Saunder
To: Planning Commission; Adam S. Mayberry; Amrik Singh Kang; Aaron Van Roo
Subject: Palo Alto ADU Staff Report to PTC
Date: Tuesday, May 26, 2020 5:35:55 PM
Attachments: ACFrOgBzWpGGw_2MTnvoa1UUrhxFt817kQOPYGieUG4PeHXiqB7ZtVaHX8Of-

tM6btMQn3Bd2tr9vFoTB2_gk8rN5mTJJHkh9s-sHuDNLikmB_dR2-0kJXcztHmRVQE=.pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Be cautious
of opening attachments and clicking on links.

To whom It May Concern:

I am a homeowner in Palo Alto, 94301 and am reaching out with respect to the attached staff
report for the ADU Ordinance update to be departed in Planning Transporation Commisson
tomorrow, Wednesday May 27th.

Palo Alto is badly in need of affordable housing and I understand that the Emergency
Ordinance that was effected in January 2020 attempts to make it easier for homeowners like
myself to build an ADU for renters. We would like to build an ADU in addition to expanding
our main house, which is way too small for our family of 6. However, the guidelines, as they
are written today make it tedious for both the homeowner and architect to understand and
rationalize how the FAR is to be allocated across the ADU & main residence. Additionally, it
appears that the way the guidelines are being interpreted by the city of Palo alto is narrow and
restrictive, diminishing the motivation to add an ADU to the property. 

More specifically, if a homeowner is converting an existing garage into an ADU and there is
no future parking requirement for an ADU, then it is our belief that the existing garage square
footage should no longer be counted in the main home's FAR. If it is counted, then this
diminishes the incentive to convert the existing garate to an ADU. I believe that the intention
behind the emergency oridinace was to 1. give all homeowners an incentive to add an ADU
and 2. for homeowners who are renovating / expanding their main home, an incentive to add
an ADU in such a way that it doesn't reduce the FAR available to their main home. If this is
the case, then in scenarios like mine where I have a combined project to add to the main house
and convert an existing garage into an ADU, the existing garage should not be counted
towards the main home FAR. 

I am writing request that the city adopt this interpretation of the ADU ordinance to ensure that
homeowners like myself are incentivized to build ADUs. Please feel free to contact me at my
above email address or on my cell below if you would like more information. 

Thanks,
Sonya
(415) 769-9627
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Planning & Transportation Commission
 Staff Report (ID # 11072) 


  
  
  


Report Type:  Action Items Meeting Date: 5/27/2020 


City of Palo Alto   
Planning & Development Services     
250 Hamilton Avenue      
Palo Alto, CA 94301  
(650) 329-2442 


Summary Title:  ADU Ordinance PTC 


Title: PUBLIC HEARING/LEGISLATIVE: Recommendation on an 
Updated Ordinance Regarding Accessory Dwelling Units: 
Amending Palo Alto Municipal Code Sections 16.58.030 
(Development Impact Fees), and 18.04.030 (Definitions), and 
Deleting Section 18.42.040 and Adding a New Chapter 18.09 
(Accessory Dwelling Units and Junior Accessory Dwelling 
Units). Environmental Assessment: Exempt From Review 
Under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21080.17 and CEQA 
Guidelines Sections 15061(b)(3), 15282(h), 15301, 15302 and 
15305. Note: Adoption of This Ordinance Would Repeal the 
Interim Urgency Ordinance Council Adopted January 13, 2020 
Which is Otherwise in Effect Until January 31, 2021. 


From: Jonathan Lait 
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Planning and Transportation Commission (PTC) take the following action: 


1. Recommend the City Council adopt the attached Ordinance (Attachment A) amending 
Palo Alto Municipal Code Titles 16 (Building) and 18 (Zoning) to amend regulations for 
Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) and Junior Accessory Dwelling Units (JADUs). 


 
Report Summary 
On January 1, 2020, California  new ADU and JADU laws went into effect. The Palo Alto City 
Council adopted the Interim Urgency Ordinance (Attachment B) on January 13, 2020 to ensure 
compliance with the new laws. The Interim Ordinance, in effect through January 2021, was 


more comprehensive update. The updated ordinance, which is the subject of this staff report, 
simplifies and streamlines local ADU/JADU regulations, while also complying with state laws.  
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The updated ordinance creates PAMC Chapter 18.09, providing development standards for all 
types of ADUs and JADUs. The chapter replaces the ADU and JADU sections from Chapter 18.42.   
The ordinance also includes amendments to PAMC Chapters 16.58 and 18.04, addressing 
development impact fees and definitions, respectively. Updates to the definitions include 
clarifications, such as what constitutes an ADU kitchen, 


 
 


ould go further than strictly required 
by state legislation to promote development of housing units. For example, the proposed 
ordinance includes more permissive parking requirements in some cases. It also allows 
construction of both a JADU and an ADU in more situations than provided for under state law.  
In addition, the City could offer a flat square footage exemption for ADUs and JADUs, rather 
than the context-dependent exemption currently proposed in the ordinance.  The pros and 
cons of this approach are presented in the discussion section of this report. 
 
Background 


ADU regulations to increase the development of ADUs. The o
consideration constitutes one part of a multi-prong approach to streamlining.  Additional 
efforts include (1) creation of an ADU checklist for applicants, (2) developing a user-friendly 
submittal guide for building professionals and homeowners, (3) consolidating ADU information 


 
 
Additionally, City Council supported receipt of SB 2 grant funds to develop ADU prototypes and 
application packages to facilitate expedited approvals. By developing packages that include pre-
approved drawings, applicants can show the design on their site plan and have the drawings as 
attachments. This could help applicants to save on the costs for architect/designer services. The 
options would need to be adaptable to the site constraints of each site, limit impacts to 
adjacent properties, and be reviewed by the Historic Resources Board and Architectural Review 
Board. This project will begin in earnest later this year.  
 
ADUs provide much needed housing for Palo Altans and 
efforts to meet its Regional Housing Needs Allocation targets. Over the last several years, the 
number of ADUs permitted and constructed in Palo Alto has steadily increased. The upward 
trend is documented in the most recent ADU quarterly report.1 For the past three years, the 
data shows that detached ADUs are the most prevalent application type (108 filed in total), 
followed by attached ADUs (48 filed in total). JADUs are a very distant third (2 filed). 
 
The proposed ordinance may increase ADU development because the ordinance prioritizes 
production, proposes additional incentives, and streamlines regulations. With the updated 


 
1 https://bit.ly/3cHvwNr; additional reports for 2019 available: The 2019 2nd and 3rd quarter ADU informational 
report is viewable at this link: https://bit.ly/2XWgjTZ. 
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ordinance, staff anticipates interest in building attached units and JADUs may increase. Staff 
will continue tracking production and include the data in the quarterly reports to Council. 
 
Staff expect ADU development will be advanced further in the upcoming Housing Element 
update. AB 671 requires that Housing Elements incentivize and promote the creation of ADUs 
at all income levels.  As the City prepares to develop and adopt an updated Housing Element 
(must be adopted by January 2023), ADUs will play a large role.  
 
Likewise, the State of California continues to propose legislation to promote ADU production. In 
October 2019, Governor Newsom signed several bills related to ADUs and JADUs (AB 68, AB 
881, SB 13). These new laws became effective on January 1, 2020, and invalidated local 
ordinances that did not comply with the new standards. For expediency, on January 13, 2020, 
the Council adopted an Interim Urgency Ordinance2, incorporating state laws to the minimum 
extent necessary. The Interim Urgency ordinance is effective until January 31, 2021 or until an 
updat  
 
The new state laws, found in Government Code section 65852.2 (Attachment F), require:  
o One detached ADU and one JADU are permitted by right on a single-family lot, subject to 


certain constraints. 
o ADUs are allowed by right in multi-family and mixed-use zones. Up to two detached ADUs, 


plus conversion of uninhabited spaces for multiple ADUs (up to 25% of units in multifamily 
buildings). 


o There is no minimum lot size for ADUs. 
o A zero setback is allowed if converting an existing structure at property line. 
o Maximum four-foot interior side and rear setbacks for newly constructed ADUs. 
o Lot coverage, floor area ratios (FARs) or open space requirements must allow at least an 


800 sf ADU. 
o Minimum 16 ft. height allowed. 
o Cannot set maximum square footage less than 850 for one-bedroom ADU, or 1,000 sf for 


two+ bedrooms. 
o JADUs are no longer limited to smaller kitchen appliances and sewer connections. 
o 60-day permit processing timeline. 
o No replacement parking is required for garage conversions to ADU. 
o No impact fees on ADUs less than 750 sf; if larger, impact fees to be proportional to main 


house. 
o 5-year moratorium on local owner-occupancy restrictions until 1/1/25. 


 
2 The Interim Ordinance https://www.cityofpaloalto.org/civicax/filebank/documents/75357. The original staff 
report  citing ADU/JADU-related bills, is here: https://www.cityofpaloalto.org/civicax/filebank/documents/74731. 
The at-places memo and the urgency ordinance Council unanimously adopted is viewable here:  
https://www.cityofpaloalto.org/civicax/filebank/documents/74864.  Council action minutes are viewable here: 
https://www.cityofpaloalto.org/civicax/filebank/blobdload.aspx?t=58940.61&BlobID=74845 
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o Owners may request a 5-year stay of building code enforcement available on unpermitted 
ADUs if they meet health and safety standards. 


o ADUs count Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA). 
o No short-term rentals of ADUs or JADUs.  
 
Discussion 
The proposed ordinance simplifies the code and encourages ADU/JADU development. The 
proposed ordinance also addresses concerns expressed by applicants and members of the 
public stating that the new laws are very difficult to comprehend.  
 
Ordinance Structure 
The ordinance is divided into two primary sections. The first, proposed section 18.09.030, 
provides regulations governing ADUs and JADUs that must be approved under state law and to 
which the City cannot apply additional standards. The second, proposed section 18.09.040, 
applies to all ADUs that do not fit into the categories set forth in section 18.09.030. For these 
ADUs, the City can apply local regulations like daylight plane, tree preservation, and privacy. 
While many property owners may choose the path prescribed by state law, some may want to 
deviate from those choices to add additional space or achieve some other flexibility.    
 
Topic Areas 
The following section describes the changes in more detail, breaking down the ordinance by 
five topic areas. These are areas where the proposed ordinance goes beyond the state law in 
order to promote ADUs/JADUs. 
 
1. Allowing Attached or Detached ADUs to be Combined with a JADU 
Currently, Government Code section 65852.2(e)(1)(B) states that cities must allow a single-
family lot to develop one detached ADU up to 800 square feet, as well as one JADU of up to 500 
feet. The proposed ordinance allows the development of JADUs that coincide with the 
development of attached ADUs as well as detached ADUs, regardless of the size of the ADU. 
 
Whether the unit is detached from the primary house or not, the same amount of floor area 
could be present on the property. Establishing a barrier based on whether or not the unit is 
detached in order to qualify to also build a JADU seems unnecessarily restrictive and prohibitive 
of unit development. While there is an argument to be made about separating the structures to 


, the proposed ordinance maintains that each unit have 
separate entrances. Additionally, only JADUs can have an interior entrance to a primary unit; 
therefore, concerns about allowing a house to grow without providing additional housing units 
are mitigated.  
 
One downside of allowing an attached ADU to be combined with a JADU is that the size of 
homes could become larger, with greater massing and without a clear delineation of primary 
unit and secondary units. Yet, staff supports allowing homeowners the option to build either an 
attached or detached unit and a JADU, and not be limited to only detached ADUs. 
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2. Privacy and Two-Story ADUs 
The City has historically permitted two story ADUs in only the RE and OS zones. Now that state 
law requires approval of certain ADUs, without the application of local regulations, there are 
additional avenues to create a two-story ADU. Previously, existing two-story structures could be 
converted into an ADU, even if they resulted in an ADU taller than 16 feet. Now, if a new 
attached ADU  is constructed as part of a newly built home, it must be 
approved if it follows the zoning development standards of that home, including additional 
height that would be able to support a two-story unit. Finally, if an ADU were created in an 
existing portion of a two-story home, it could be located on the second floor or span from the 
ground floor to the upper floor, provided it maintained exterior access and had no internal 
connection between the units.  
 
It is important to note new construction of full two-story, detached units is not likely feasible 
within a 16-foot height limit. The Chief Building Official has indicated that new residential 
structures are typically built about six inches off the ground, and that all habitable rooms shall 
have a minimum seven-foot floor-to-ceiling clearance. A floor/ceiling and ceiling/roof assembly, 
separately, can range from between 10 to 16 inches, possibly creating a total height between 
16 feet-2 inches and 17 feet-2 inches. This estimated height would be above the 16-foot height 
the City is required to approve under state law. Nevertheless, constructing such units is 
certainly of interest.  
 
While the privacy impacts of these units may be cause for concern for neighbors of such units, 
the City of Palo Alto is unable to impose privacy requirements for units that must be approved 
under state law. In addition, the City would not be able to prevent ADUs that follow the state 
requirements from having a loft space, which was previously not allowed. Instead, the 
proposed ordinance clarifies that such loft space counts as floor area for an ADU.  
 
The proposed ordinance would also allow loft space in units for which approval is not mandated 
under state law. To minimize potential privacy concerns, the draft ordinance includes 
regulations (see section 18.09.040) to limit privacy impacts from units that do not fall into the 


follows:  
 


2) all windows facing an adjoining property must utilize obscured glazing, and  
3) any non-egress window facing an adjoining property must have a minimum five-foot 
sill height.  


 
These policies are proven techniques for privacy protection drawn from the Individual Review 
Guidelines. These would also be easy to implement and support the state requirement that all 
ADUs be reviewed ministerially.  
 
3. Parking and JADUs 
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A major reason ADU applications increased following the Council adoption of ADU regulations 
in 2017 was the relaxation of parking space requirements. State law enabled ADUs and JADUs 


requirements. The law stipulated these units were to be located within proximity to well served 
transit. As an enhancement, City Council adopted a rule that any garage that was converted to 
an ADU did not require replacement of the displaced garage spaces with covered parking 
spaces. Instead, the adopted code allowed these spaces to be provided as uncovered spaces 
and to be located within the front yard setback (which is not currently allowed for new homes). 
This change greatly expanded what homeowners could do and removed major barriers to ADU 
construction. This change resulted in garage conversions as the most common ADU application 
proposed. 
 
Parking requirements for JADUs however, were not changed nor was a parking replacement 
opportunity allowed. Previously, JADUs were only allowed to be conversions of an existing 
bedroom. Now, State law enables homeowners to build a JADU and an ADU within a brand-new 
home. Therefore, the interpretation that a JADU is only a converted bedroom is inconsistent. As 
such, the draft ordinance allows for a JADU conversion of a portion or all, of an existing garage 
that is attached to an existing home. The covered parking spaces displaced by the JADU would 
be required to be replaced on site as uncovered parking spaces. The replacement parking 
spaces could be placed within the required front or street side yards of a property. In the end, 
residents can choose whether they want to convert the garage to an ADU or JADU. Allowing 
garages to convert into JADUs creates an incentive and is of great interest to residents. By 
removing this barrier to housing unit production, staff believes there will be additional interest 
and investment in the creation of JADUs. 
 
It is important to recognize the negative impacts this approach to increasing dwelling units 
could have on the community. Staff has heard concerns from residents that the new local and 
State regulations may increase vehicle traffic and the presence of vehicles parked on public 
streets in residential neighborhoods. With the opportunity for three separate housing units on 
a single-family zoned property, more individuals will be living on a site and each may own a car. 
While this is also a concern to staff, individually, these units do not have parking requirements 
as dictated by the State. By allowing JADUs to benefit from the conversion allowances 
previously afforded to ADUs, the ordinance may increase the likelihood of additional vehicles 
present in a neighborhood. However, maintaining uncovered, on-site parking would help 
alleviate this issue, as staff frequently hears from homeowners that they do not use their 
garage to house vehicles. ADUs no longer have a replacement parking requirement per the 
recent State laws, so if a homeowner chose to proceed with an ADU instead, the City would be 
losing additional opportunities to require parking be maintained on the site. 


 
4. Noise Producing Equipment 
Currently, the Palo Alto Municipal Code prohibits noise producing equipment within the 
standard property setbacks. The draft ordinance proposes allowing noise producing equipment 
for all units to follow their respective setback requirements. This would remove one of the 
barriers homeowners face when designing an ADU. This change will reduce some of the site 
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planning challenges homeowners face. The City will still have mechanisms in place to protect 
neighbors from excessive noise.  
 
Under current regulations, noise producing equipment would need to be placed outside of the 
minimum setbacks for the property. Minimum R-1 setbacks range from six feet to eight feet for 
interior side setbacks, 16 feet for a street side setback, and 20 feet or more (notwithstanding 
special setbacks) for front and rear setbacks. This contrasts with the minimum setback of four 
feet allowed by State law for ADUs. The public has criticized the restrictiveness of this noise-
producing equipment location regulation, because it can lead to sub-optimal locations that 
result in more ducting and, thus, more cost. 
 
Updating the location requirements for noise-producing equipment will not diminish the 
protection neighbors have from excessive noise as other means can mitigate noise levels.  First, 
newer technology has resulted in quieter equipment. For example, commonly proposed mini-
split AC systems used on detached structures have a decibel range between 45 and 60 decibels 
(dBs). Second, for louder equipment, many manufacturers can provide sound blankets, which 
typically reduce the decibel rating five or more decibels. Finally, regardless of these changes, 
the noise ordinance still requires that ambient noise in residential neighborhoods not exceed 
66 dBs at the property line, so it is in the interest of an ADU owner to use quiet, well-placed 
equipment. Furthermore, the City can require homeowners to utilize a sound blanket or use 
quieter, new equipment where feasible.  
 
5. Removing the Deed Restriction Process for ADUs 
The proposed ordinance eliminates the requirement of recording deed restrictions for ADUs. 
Previously, these included: (1) the owner may not rent the property for less than 30 days, (2) 
the owner may not sell the properties separately, and (3) the owner had to occupy the 
property.  The proposed ordinance instead relies simply on codified requirements for the rental 
and sale of an ADU; state law no longer allows an owner occupancy requirement. The 
elimination of the deed restriction removes a lengthy recordation process and streamlines the 
ADU approval process. Note that deed restrictions are still required for JADUs, in compliance 
with the State laws. 
 
Code Enforcement staff can, using the code, address any issue related to a homeowner not 
following these rental or sale requirements.  Deed restrictions do offer more clarity to future 
property owners regarding the restrictions placed on ADUs. Staff believe, however, that both 
disclosure during the property acquisition process and due diligence on a homeowner s part 
will keep all parties informed. 
 
Potential Additional Regulations 
The following potential additional regulations are not included in the draft ordinance. Staff 
discussed these 
added. 
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1. Providing a Uniform Exemption of ADU Square Footage from FAR, Lot Coverage, and 
Maximum House Size 


Under State rules, the City must allow floor area over  maximum allowable floor 
area (calculated with respect to site area as a Floor Area Ratio (FAR) maximum) to the extent 
necessary to construct an 800 sq. ft. ADU. This requirement was incorporated into both the 
Interim Ordinance and the proposed ordinance without modification. Thus, properties would 
be entitled to different amounts of exempt ADU square footage depending on the amount of 
FAR available for the property after accounting for the primary residence.  
 
This can be illustrated by imagining a 6,000 square foot R-1 lot, which would allow up to 2,550 
sq. ft. of floor area. A homeowner with a 2,000 square foot primary residence on this property 
would be entitled to exempt up to 250 square feet of an 800 square foot ADU. If the primary 
residence were 2,550 square feet, the property owner would be entitled exempt all 800 square 
feet of the ADU.  Finally, if the primary residence were less than 1,750 square feet, ADU floor 
area exemption would not be required or provided. 
 
This creates an incentive for a property owner to build to the maximum FAR for the primary 
residence before applying for an ADU. This could have the effect of encouraging tear-down 
remodels. Ultimately, a determined property owner could maximize the square footage on a 
property by simply splitting the construction of a primary residence and an ADU into two 
separate projects. This approach to ADU square footage also makes it more difficult to 
construct an ADU over 800 sq. ft, as the entire square footage of the ADU would need to be 
accommodated within allowable FAR without any exemption. 
 
To avoid these effects and to encourage ADU production, the City could provide a uniform 


 only square footage above 800 sq. ft. would count towards the floor area 
maximum (FAR, lot coverage, or maximum house size). This approach could make it easier for 
the public to understand how these limits can impact what is allowed and make it easier for 
staff to implement. It also would remove a potential incentive to demolish an existing residence 
to max out FAR before building an ADU. Finally, this approach would allow a property owner 
seeking to build a larger ADU to do so if there is additional FAR available for the site. 
 
A uniform approach to exempting ADU square footage would make it marginally easier to 
maximize the size of both a primary residence and an ADU by eliminating the two-step process.  
It is unclear to what extent this would impact the ultimate development of properties, 
however. 
 
2. Providing a 500 Square Foot Floor Area Exemption for JADUs 
State law does not create any specific floor area allowances for JADUs. In 2017/2018, the City 
updated its regulations to allow for bonus floor area for ADUs and JADUs (220 sq. ft. and 50 sq. 
ft. bonus floor area for ADUs and JADUs, respectively). While these changes greatly helped to 
spur the development of ADUs, JADU development is slow to start. As noted, the City has only 
received two applications to create JADUs.  
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The updated ordinance could include an allowance for JADUs to exempt up to 500 sq. ft. of 
floor area similar to the exemption for ADU floor area. For homeowners seeking to create both 
an ADU and JADU, staff would propose limiting the total exemption by requiring the 800 sq. ft 
provided by the state to be shared between the ADU and JADU. In this manner, a combination 
of square footage could be attributed to both units, but it would not limit someone from 
utilizing all of it to be build an 800 sq. ft. ADU. Conversely, if there were not enough square 
footage left over to build a JADU, then the applicant would resort to doing a garage conversion 
or cannibalize  parts of their primary residence. Overall, staff believes that this would provide 
residents the opportunity to build both an ADU and JADU without having to cannibalize  the 


floor area. 
 
3. Treatment of Secondary Street Frontages 
Several provisions of the new state ADU laws 
setbacks of more than four feet for ADUs. To date, the City has interpreted this requirement to 
refer to interior side and rear lot lines only. In other words, secondary street frontages or 


- t lines are still subject to the setbacks provided in the underlying zoning 
(generally 16 feet). 
 
Staff has learned, informally, that the State Department of Housing and Community 
Development (HCD) interprets the four-foot setback rule to apply to secondary street frontages 
as well as interior side and rear lot lines. Staff believe this is not the best reading of the statute. 


creatures of local zoning ordinances. While many jurisdictions refer to a secondary street 
-


side and rear setbacks is best applied only to interior setbacks. In addition, there are important 
policy reasons for increased setbacks on street frontages, including maintaining visibility for 
safety. 
 


rtment is charged with reviewing all 
local ADU regulations for compliance with the state law. If HCD finds that a local ordinance is 
out of compliance, a local agency has 30 days to respond by either amending its ordinance or 
adopting findings to explain why it believes the ordinance does in fact comply with state law, 


 If an agency chooses to adopt such findings, the ultimate 
question of compliance with state law would likely be resolved by a court. 
 
If the City wished to def
policy options to encourage increased setbacks for secondary street frontages. 
 
Regulations Not Proposed 
The three topics below represent items staff considered but rejected for inclusion in the 
updated ordinance, for reasons as described: 
 
1. Doorways Between an ADU and the Primary Unit 
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The Purpose section of the 2017 and 2018 ADU ordinances cited ADUs as designed to be 
separate, self-sustaining units able to function independently from the primary unit. One of the 
meanings staff intended was that ADUs and primary units would not have a passageway 
between them, since this would defeat the purpose of units being independent. Some 
members of the public and survey respondents have expressed interest in having a relative live 
in the units and have asked to provide a doorway between attached ADUs. While it is easy to 
understand the practical, emotional, or otherwise normal reasoning for wanting a passageway 
between the units for a relative, staff has reservations about allowing this to occur. 
 
First, the State explicitly allows JADUs to have shared openings. Likewise, the existing and 
proposed ordinance establish this opportunity. The JADU provides property owners the option 
of creating a true independent unit in which a relative might live. The JADU can accommodate 
the growing trend of intergenerational households. As noted, there were no incentives to 
trigger enough interest in JADU development previously. With the increase in incentives for 
JADUs, staff believes that this will help to address the concerns of residents seeking to house 
family. If the City allows doorways, the City would be going beyond what the State allowed for 
JADUs and seemingly left unchanged for attached ADUs. At that point, there would be minimal 
differences between an ADU or a JADU. 
 
Second, staff has concerns that allowing a passageway or opening would diminish the 
underlying policy goal of ADUs: to create more housing units. By allowing a connection between 
dwelling units, homeowners could more easily use the ADU as additional square footage for the 
primary home. Clearly, lack of a door will not force a homeowner to rent an ADU, but it does 
discourage such actions. Without a tracking program in place to after a unit has received a final 
occupancy permit the City cannot verify if attached ADUs are operating as intended.  
 
Lastly, staff is concerned the passageway could diminish quality of life for tenants who are not 
relatives of the homeowners. Living in a unit with a passageway to the primary unit can create 
an uncomfortable atmosphere. Tenants may feel as though their place of residence can be 
accessed by others at any point without their consent. Without a door, there is a more 
permanent sense of separation from the primary unit. A greater sense of place, security, and 
comfort are important for tenants.  
 
2. Increasing the Exemption for Development Impact Fees 
The cost to build an ADU in Palo Alto increases each year. Whether its building permit fees, 
architect fees, or contractor fees, property owners consistently decry the cost to build anything 
in Palo Alto. Previously, Development Impact (DI) fees were charged for ADUs; roughly $7,000 
and $12,000 for a new ADU, depending on the whether the property was within any traffic 
impact districts. In 2018, Palo Alto updated its ADU ordinance to enable JADUs and garage 
conversions that did not expand the square footage of the unit to be exempt from DI fees. This 
captured a fair amount of application types. 
 
The State  2020 laws exempt ADUs having less than 750 sq. ft. of floor area from having to pay 
DI fees. For units greater than 750 sq. ft., the DI fees charged must be proportional in size to the 
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main house. The survey group indicated interest in increasing exemptions beyond 750 sq. ft. 
446 square feet so 


increasing the exemption will not affect a substantial amount of applications that the City 
receives. While increasing the exemption for ADUs to include units of any size is an option, it is 
worth recognizing DI fees pay for the increased use of Parks, Community Centers, Libraries, 
Public Safety, and General Government services that would come with an increase in 
population caused by the construction of additional units. By eliminating DI fees for units over 
750 sq. ft. as well, the City would be losing revenue. 
 
3. The Flood Zone, Screening, and Grading and Drainage 
Several of the survey respondents requested to remove flood zone screening and grading and 
drainage requirements. Public Works staff have oversight projects located within the flood zone 
and are otherwise involved in reviews related to grading and drainage. Flood zone screening is 
a requirement of the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and cannot be 
eliminated or waived for properties located within a flood zone. Public Works maintains its 
grading and drainage program so that buildings, especially detached ADUs located closer to a 
property line, will not send stormwater drainage onto and adversely impact 
property. The updated ordinance does not include changes to any of these requirements. 
 
Currently, single family residences located in a flood zone can benefit from added height. 
Sections 18.10 and 18.12 both allow for the maximum heights of the primary residence to be 


This 
allowance, however, is not afforded to accessory buildings which are limited to a maximum 
height of 12 feet when located within a setback. Given that the state allows detached ADUs to 
be 16 feet tall, four feet away from the property line, staff is concerned that providing the same 
opportunity for increased height for units in the flood zone will result in structures that have a 
greater massing impact on adjacent neighbors. The building code allows for units to have a 
minimum head height clearance of seven feet, so staff feels confident that this will not prohibit 
properties in a flood zone from building an ADU. 
 
Regulations Not Fully Analyzed 
It is worth noting that there are three additional issues staff did not take up for consideration to 
include in the draft updated ordinance. The PTC may wish to provide input if the 
Commissioners believe there are benefits to adding these three topics to the discussion: for 
inclusion in the updated ordinance or a future ordinance: 
i. Allow two-story ADUs,  
ii. Enable basements at a four-foot setback for accessory/junior dwelling units, 
iii. Change .  
 
i. Two-Story ADUs 
Staff suspects the community would be unsupportive if the City were to propose new two-
story, detached accessory dwelling units in the backyards of single-family homes. Similarly, the 
community may express concerns if the City were to propose allowing second floor dwelling 
units to be constructed above detached garages. While it may provide some flexibility for unit 
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placement on a site plan, a two-story detached ADU has greater potential to impact privacy 
than a one-story detached ADU. The PTC may wish to consider allowing two-story, detached 
ADUs, by modifying the ordinance to enable greater height above 16 feet for units under 800 
sq. ft. or remove the distinctions for units above and below the 800 sq. ft. floor area threshold.  
 
ii. Basements 
Another alternative not considered for inclusion in the updated ordinance was allowing 
basements under detached second units located within the rear and side setbacks. Currently, 
accessory buildings are only allowed to have a basement when they are located outside of the 
minimum side and rear property setbacks. By allowing basements under detached units near 
property lines, subterranean structures 
property line. From a process standpoint, there would be little change required from Building, 
Planning, or Public Works to enable such basements. Light wells for basements are not allowed 
to be closer than the four-foot setback of a detached ADU. However, Public Works explains that 
it is very time-consuming and expensive to review and build a home basement; adding an ADU 
basement into the mix would raise the price for the homeowner. However, outside of the 


not prohibit this option.  
 
Yet, residents are generally concerned about the impact to the ground water level due to 
basement construction under homes. Adding the option for ADUs to create basements near 
property lines would exacerbate these concerns.  dewatering regulations strive to 
address those concerns; limitations are in place to dictate when that work can occur and how it 
can be mitigated. Staff believes that these regulations appropriately address the impacts of 
dewatering on a property and its surrounding neighbors. In response to the issues highlighted 
for two-story ADUs, this could additionally support those residents who are looking to add 
more space to their units while limiting the above-ground impacts to neighbors. If PTC wishes 
to consider adding this option, clarification would be needed. Clarification such as basements 
could be only be allowed under a detached ADU under the following conditions: 


 the basement does not encroach into the four-foot detached ADU setback, and  
 lightwells for the basement are not located closer than four-feet to a side or rear 


property line. 
 
iii. Green Building Requirements 
Several of the survey respondents indicated their concerns with the Green Building (GB) 
requirements for new ADUs. The respondents  concerns were that requiring a new ADU to 
comply with Tier 2 GB requirements is very costly, complex, and time consuming, and that this 
requirement has led to many challenges on their projects. Their suggestion was to reduce the 
GB requirement to mandatory only (State Minimum).  Staff is considering this proposal.  
Currently, ADUs are not subject to the 2019 Energy Reach Code requirements.  During the 
adoption of the 2019 Energy Reach Code council directed staff to consider developing an All 
Electric provision for Detached by the end of 2020. This work 
will occur later this year and include a consideration of ADUs.  
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Environmental Review 
The Council finds that the adoption of this Ordinance is exempt from the provisions of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 
21080.17 and CEQA Guidelines sections 15061(b)(3), 15301, 15302 and 15305 because it 


requirements related to accessory dwelling units as established in Government Code Section 
65852.2, and these changes are also likely to result in few additional dwelling units dispersed 
throughout the City. As such, it can be seen with certainty that the proposed action will not 
have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. 
 
Public Notification, Outreach & Comments 
In February 2020, staff reached out to a list of 15 individuals, including local architects and 
other frequent Development Center applicants, with a 10-question survey.  The ten questions 


requirements/review process. The list of survey questions and responses is Attachment C to 
this report. Additionally, other City staff members who commonly review ADU applications 


survey and staff responses are discussed in the Discussion section of this report. A summary of 
the issues and staff responses to them is in Attachment D. 
 
Staff attended a community meeting on ADUs May 19, 2020, presented slides regarding how 
Palo Alto had implemented the new State laws, and answered questions. The meeting was held 
via Zoom sponsored by Palo Alto Forward with multiple panelists. 
the community meeting is attached to this report (Attachment E). During the PTC meeting, staff 
will provide a summary of the community meeting and the questions raised by meeting 
attendees.  
 
Next Steps 
Council will receive the proposed ordinance for consideration. The Council will consider the 


 and any recommendations the PTC may provide to enhance 
streamlining goals or recommendations of additional incentives to increase ADU 


production.  
 
Alternative Actions 
In addition to the recommended action, the Planning and Transportation Commission may:  


1. Provide direction to make further modifications to the ordinance prior to Council 
consideration, or 


2. Continue the hearing to a date certain to enable staff to perform additional study, prior 
to returning to the PTC in the fall. 


 
Report Author & Contact Information PTC3 Liaison & Contact Information 


 
3 Emails may be sent directly to the PTC using the following address: planning.commission@cityofpaloalto.org  
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Garrett Sauls, Associate Planner Rachael Tanner, Assistant Director 
(650) 329-2471 (650) 329-2167 


Garrett.Sauls@CityofPaloAlto.org Rachael.Tanner@cityofpaloalto.org 
 
Attachments: 


 Attachment A: Proposed ADU Ordinance (DOCX) 
 Attachment B: Interim Urgency Ordinance January 2020 (Ordinance #5489) (PDF) 
 Attachment C: Ten Survey Questions and Responses (February, 2020) (DOCX) 
 Attachment D: More Outreach Information (DOCX) 
 Attachment E: Community Meeting May 19 2020 (PDF) 
 Attachment F: Government Code Section 65852.2. Accessory Dwelling Units (PDF) 
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Ordinance No.
Ordinance of the Council of the City of Palo Alto Amending Title 18 (Zoning) of the Palo Alto


Municipal Code to Amend Requirements Relating to Accessory Dwelling Units and Junior 
Accessory Dwelling Units 


 
 


The Council of the City of Palo Alto does ORDAIN as follows: 
 
SECTION 1.  Findings and Declarations.  The City Council finds and declares as follows: 
 


A. Housing in California is increasingly unaffordable. In 2017, the average California home 
cost about 2.5 times the national average home price and the monthly rent was 50% 
higher than the rest of the nation. Rents in San Francisco, San Jose, Oakland, and Los 
Angeles are among the top 10 most unaffordable in the nation. 
 


B. Housing in Palo Alto is especially unaffordable. The average Palo Alto home currently costs 
about 8 times the national average home price and the monthly rent is about 2.5 times the 
national average. 


 
C. Palo Alto has a jobs/housing imbalance. When addressing this imbalance, the City must 


not only provide housing but also ensure affordability. 
 


D. 68, 587, 671, and 
pertain to accessory dwelling units s s s  
and were approved by the California Legislature on September 13, 2019 and signed by the 
Governor on October 9, 2019.  These bills, codified primarily in California Government Code 
sections 65952.2 and 65952.22, are intended to spur the creation of lower cost housing by 
easing regulatory barriers to the creation of ADUs and JADUs. 


 
E. This ordinance is adopted to comply with the mandates of the State ADU Law. 
 


SECTION 2.  Section 18.42.040 (Accessory and Junior Accessory Dwelling Units) of Chapter 18.42 
(Standards for Special Uses) of Title 18 (Zoning) of the PAMC  is deleted in 
its entirety. 
 
SECTION 3.  Chapter 18.09 (Accessory Dwelling Units and Junior Accessory Dwelling Units) of Title 18 


added to read: 
 


18.09.010 Purpose 
 
The intent of this Chapter is to provide regulations to accommodate accessory and junior 
accessory dwelling units (ADU/JADU), in order to provide for variety to the city's housing stock 
and additional affordable housing opportunities. These units shall be separate, self-contained 
living units, with separate entrances from the main residence, whether attached or detached. 
The standards below are provided to minimize the impacts of units on nearby residents and 
throughout the city, and to assure that the size and location of such dwellings is compatible 
with the existing or proposed residence(s) on the site and with other structures in the area. 


 
18.09.020 Applicable Zoning Districts 
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The establishment of an accessory dwelling unit is permitted in zoning districts when single-
family or multi-family residential is a permitted land use. 
 
18.09.030 Units Approved Notwithstanding Other Local Regulations 


 
(a) Government Code section 65852.2, subdivision (e) provides that certain units shall be 


approved notwithstanding other state or local regulations that may otherwise apply. The 
following types of units shall be governed by the standards in this section. In the event of a 
conflict between this section and Government Code section 65852.2, subdivision (e), the 
Government Code shall prevail.   
 


i. An ADU or JADU within the existing space of a single-family dwelling or an ADU 
within the existing space of an accessory structure (i.e. conversion). 
 


ii. An ADU or JADU within the proposed space of a single-family dwelling. 
 


iii. A detached, new construction ADU on a lot with a proposed or existing single-family 
dwelling, provided the ADU does not exceed 800 square feet, sixteen feet in height, 
or four-foot side and rear (i.e. interior) setbacks. 


 
iv. ADUs created by conversion of portions of existing multi-family dwellings not used 


as livable space. 
 


v. Up to two detached ADUs on a lot with an existing multi-family dwelling. 
 
(b) The Development Standards for units required to be approved pursuant to Government 


Code Section 65852.2, subdivision (e) are summarized in Table 1. 
 
// 
 
 
// 
 
 
// 
 
 
// 
 
 
// 
 
 
// 
 
 
// 
 
 
// 
 
 
// 
 
 
// 
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Table 1: Units Required to Be Approved Under State Law 


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
Units Allowed1 1 (ADU or JADU) 1 


25% of the 
existing units 
(at least one) 


2 


Minimum size2 150 sf 
Maximum size2 N/A3 800 sf N/A 


Setbacks 
N/A, if 


condition is 
sufficient for 


fire and safety 


Underlying 
zone standard 


for Single 
Family Home 


 
(ADU must be 
within space 


of Single-
Family Home) 


4 feet from 
interior lot 
lines; meet 
underlying 


zone standard 
for street 
setbacks 


N/A 


4 feet from 
interior yard 


lot lines; meet 
underlying 


zone standard 
for street 
setbacks 


Daylight Plane N/A N/A 
Maximum 
Height N/A 164 N/A 164 


Parking None 


State Law 
Reference 65852.2(e)(1)(A) 65852.2(e)(1)(A) 65852.2(e)(1)(B) 65852.2(e)(1)(C) 65852.2(e)(1)(D) 


(1) An attached or detached ADU may be built in conjunction with a JADU on a lot with an existing or 
proposed single family home. 


(2) Lofts where the height from the floor level to the underside of the rafter or finished roof surface is 5' or 
greater shall count t  


(3) Up to 150 sf may be added for ingress and egress. 
(4) Units built in a flood zone are not entitled to any height extensions granted to the primary dwelling. 


 
(c) Development standards stated elsewhere in this Section or Title 18, including standards 


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
 
(f) Rental of any unit created pursuant to this section shall be for a term of 30 days or more. 
 
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


65852.2(e)(1)(A) may include reconstruction in-place of a non-conforming structure, so long 
as the renovation of reconstruction does not increase the degree of non-compliance, such 
as increased height, envelope, or further intrusion into required setbacks. 
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(i) Street addresses shall be assigned to all units prior to building permit final to assist in
emergency response. 


(j) The unit shall not be sold separately from the primary residence. 
 
(k) JADUs shall comply with the requirements of Section 18.09.050. 
 
 
18.09.040 All Other Units 


 
(a) This section shall govern applications for ADUs and JADUs that do not qualify for approval 


under section 18.09.030. 
 


(b) The Development Standards for units governed by this section are provided in Table 2. 
 
Table 2: All other Units 


 Attached Detached JADU 
Number of Units 
Allowed1 1 1 


Minimum size 150 sf 


Maximum size 


900 sf or 1,000 sf for two 
or more bedrooms; 


no more than 50% of the 
size of the single-family 


home 


900 sf or 1,000 sf for 
two or more 


bedrooms 
500 sf 


Setbacks 4 feet from interior yard lot lines; meet underlying zone standard for street 
setbacks 


Daylight Plane  
Initial Height 8 feet at lot line 


Angle 45 degrees 
Maximum Height3    


Res. Estate (RE)  30 feet  
Open Space (OS)  25 feet  


All other eligible zones  16 feet  
Parking None 
Square Footage 
Exemption Up to 800 sf N/A 


(1) An attached or detached ADU may be built in conjunction with a JADU on a lot with an existing or 
proposed single family home 


(2) Lofts where the height from the floor level to the underside of the rafter or finished roof surface is 5' or 
greater  


(3) Units built in a flood zone are not entitled to any height extensions granted to the primary dwelling. 
  


(c) A single-family dwelling shall exist on the lot or shall be constructed on the lot in conjunction 
with the construction of an ADU/JADU. 
 


(d) ADU square footage shall be exempt from FAR, Lot Coverage, and Maximum House Size to 
the minimum extent necessary to permit the establishment of an 800 square foot ADU that 
does not exceed 16 feet in height and provides at least four foot setbacks from interior rear 
and side lot lines. 


 
(e) Attached units shall have independent exterior access from a proposed or existing single-


family dwelling.  Except for JADUs, attached units shall not have an interior access point to 
the primary dwelling (e.g. hotel door or other similar feature/appurtenance). 


 


3.a


Packet Pg. 33







5 
ORD 2020-05-19 ADU Revamp 


(f) No protected tree shall be removed for the purpose of establishing an accessory dwelling 
unit unless the tree is dead, dangerous or constitutes a nuisance under Section 8.04.050. 
Any protected tree removed pursuant to this subsection shall be replaced in accordance 
with the standards in the Tree Technical Manual. 


 
(g) For properties listed in the Palo Alto Historic Inventory, the California Register of Historical 


Resources, the National Register of Historic Places, or considered a historic resource after 
completion of a historic resource evaluation, compliance with the appropriate Secretary of 


 
 
(h) Noise-producing equipment such as air conditioners, water heaters, and similar service 


equipment, shall be located outside of the setbacks for the ADU/JADU. All such equipment 
shall be insulated and housed, except that the planning director may permit installation 
without housing and insulation, provided that a combination of technical noise 
specifications, location of equipment, and/or other screening or buffering will assure 


eq  
 
(i) Setbacks 
 


i. Detached units shall maintain a minimum three-foot distance from the primary unit, 
measured from the exterior walls of structures. 


 
ii. No basement or other subterranean portion of an ADU/JADU shall encroach into a 


setback required for the primary dwelling. 
 


iii. Projections, including but not limited to windows, doors, mechanical equipment, 
venting or exhaust systems, are not permitted to encroach into the required 
setbacks, with the exception of a roof eave of up to 2 feet. 


 
(j) Design 
 


i. Except on corner lots, the unit shall not have an entranceway facing the same lot 
line (property line) as the entranceway to the main dwelling unit unless the 
entranceway to the accessory unit is located in the rear half of the lot. Exterior 
staircases to second floor units shall be located toward the interior side or rear yard 
of the property. 


 
ii. Privacy 


 
A. Second story doors and decks shall not face a neighboring dwelling unit. 


Decks and balconies shall utilize screening barriers to prevent views into 
adjacent properties. These barriers shall provide a minimum five-foot, six-
inch, screen wall from the floor level of the deck or balcony and shall not 
include perforations that would allow visibility between properties. 


 
B. Second story windows, excluding those required for egress, shall have a 


five-foot sill height as measured from the second-floor level, or utilize 
obscured glazing on the entirety of the window when facing adjacent 
properties. 


 
C. 


privacy. 
 
(k) Parking 
 


3.a


Packet Pg. 34







6 
ORD 2020-05-19 ADU Revamp 


i. Replacement parking is not required when a garage, carport, or covered parking 
structure is converted to, or demolished in conjunction with the construction of, an 
ADU.
 


ii. Replacement parking is required when an existing attached garage is converted to a 
JADU. These replacement spaces may be provided as uncovered spaces in any 
configuration on the lot including within the front or street side yard setback for the 
property. 


 
A. The Director shall have the authority to modify required replacement 


parking spaces by up to one foot in width and length upon finding that the 
reduction is necessary to accommodate parking in a location otherwise 
allowed under this code and is not detrimental to public health, safety or 
the general welfare. 
 


B. Existing front and street side yard driveways may be enlarged to the 
minimum extent necessary to comply with the replacement parking 
requirement above. Existing curb cuts shall not be altered except when 
necessary to promote public health, safety or the general welfare. 


 
iii. When parking is provided, the unit shall have street access from a driveway in 


common with the main residence in order to prevent new curb cuts, excessive 
paving, and elimination of street trees, unless separate driveway access will result in 
fewer environmental impacts such as paving, grading or tree removal. 
 


iv. If covered parking for a unit is provided in any district, the maximum size of the 
covered parking area for the accessory dwelling unit is 220 square feet. This space 
shall count towards the total floor area for the site but does not contribute to the 
maximum size of the unit unless attached to the unit. 


 
(l) Miscellaneous requirements 


 
i. Street addresses shall be assigned to all units prior to building permit final to assist 


in emergency response. 
 


ii. The unit shall not be sold separately from the primary residence. 
 


iii. Rental of any unit created pursuant to this section shall be for a term of 30 days or 
more. 


 
iv. The installation of fire sprinklers shall not be required in an accessory dwelling unit 


if sprinklers are not required for the primary residence.  
 


18.09.050 Additional Requirements for JADUs 
 


(a) A junior accessory dwelling unit shall be created within the walls of an existing or proposed 
primary dwelling. 


 
(b) The junior accessory dwelling unit shall include an efficiency kitchen, requiring the following 


components: A cooking facility with appliances, and; food preparation counter and storage 
cabinets that are of reasonable size in relation to the size of the junior accessory dwelling unit. 
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i. A cooking facility with appliances shall mean, at minimum a one burner installed 
range, an oven or convection microwave, a 10 cubic foot refrigerator and freezer 
combination unit, and a sink that facilitates hot and cold water. 


 
ii. A food preparation counter and storage cabinets shall be of reasonable size in relation 


to a JADU if they provide counter space equal to a minimum 24-inch depth and 36-
inch length. 
 


(c) For the purposes of any fire or life protection ordinance or regulation or for the purposes of 
providing service for water, sewer, or power, a junior accessory dwelling unit shall not be 
considered a separate or new unit. 


 
(d) The owner of a parcel proposed for a junior accessory dwelling unit shall occupy as a primary 


residence either the primary dwelling or the junior accessory dwelling. Owner-occupancy is 
not required if the owner is a governmental agency, land trust, or housing organization. 


 
(e) Prior to the issuance of a building permit for a junior accessory dwelling unit, the owner shall 


record a deed restriction in a form approved by the city that includes a prohibition on the sale 
of the junior accessory dwelling unit separate from the sale of the single-family residence, 
requires owner-occupancy consistent with subsection (m)(iv) above, does not permit short-
term rentals, and restricts the size and attributes of the junior dwelling unit to those that 
conform with this section. 
 


 
SECTION 4.    Subsection (g) of Section 16.58.030 of Chapter 16.58 (Development Impact Fees) of Title 16 


is amended to read: 
 


(g)   Accessory dwelling units (ADU) less than 750 square feet in size. Any impact fees to be 
charged for an accessory dwelling unit of 750 square feet or more shall be proportional to the 
square footage of the primary dwelling unit established by the conversion of an existing garage 
or carport, provided that the existing garage or carport was legally constructed, or received 
building permits, as of January 1, 2017, and is converted to an ADU with no expansion of the 
existing building envelope; 


SECTION 5.    Subsections (a)(4) and (a)(75) of Section 18.04.030 (Definitions) of Chapter 18.04 
to read: 


 
 [. . .] 
 


provides complete independent living facilities for one or more persons. It shall include permanent 
provisions for living, sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation on the same parcel as the single-
family dwelling is situated. An accessory dwelling unit also includes the following: 


 
(A) An efficiency unit, as defined in Section 17958.1 of the Health and Safety Code. 
 
(B) A manufactured home, as defined in Section 18007 of the Health and Safety Code. 
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In some instances this Code uses the term second dwelling unit interchangeably with accessory 
dwelling unit. For the purposes of this definition,


 a dwelling unit shall not have an interior access point to another dwelling unit (e.g. hotel 
door or other similar feature/appurtenance). 


 
 [. . .] 
 


(75 Kitchen a room designed, intended or used for cooking and the preparation of food 
and dishwashing. Kitchen facilities include the presence of major appliances, utility connections, 
sink, counter, for storing, preparing, cooking, and cleaning. 


(A) For ADUs, major appliances shall mean a minimum two burner installed range, and 
an oven or convection microwave, as well as a minimum 16 cubic foot freezer and 
refrigerator combination unit. Kitchens shall also include counter space for food 
preparation equal to a minimum 24-inch depth and 36-inch length, and a sink that 
facilitates hot and cold water. 


[. . .] 


 
SECTION 6.    Any provision of the Palo Alto Municipal Code or appendices thereto inconsistent with the 
provisions of this Ordinance, to the extent of such inconsistencies and no further, is hereby repealed or 
modified to that extent necessary to effect the provisions of this Ordinance. 


SECTION 7.    If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason 
held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. The City Council 
hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance and each and every section, subsection, 
sentence, clause, or phrase not declared invalid or unconstitutional without regard to whether any 
portion of the ordinance would be subsequently declared invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 8.    The Council finds that the adoption of this Ordinance is exempt from the provisions of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21080.17 and 
CEQA Guidelines sections 15061(b)(3), 15301, 15302 and 15305 because it constitutes minor 


dwelling units as established in Government Code Section 65852.2, and these changes are also likely to 
result in few additional dwelling units dispersed throughout the City. As such, it can be seen with 
certainty that the proposed action will not have the potential for causing a significant effect on the 
environment.  
 
SECTION 9. This ordinance shall be effective on the thirty-first date after the date of its adoption. 
 
INTRODUCED:    


PASSED:  


AYES: 
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT: 
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NOT PARTICIPATING: 


ATTEST: 
 


 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
City Clerk  Mayor 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: APPROVED: 
 


 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Assistant City Attorney City Manager 
 


 
__________________________________ 
Director of Planning & Development 
Services 
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Ordinance No. 5489
Ordinance of the Council of the City of Palo Alto Amending Title 18 (Zoning) of the 
Palo Alto Municipal Code to Amend Requirements Relating to Accessory Dwelling 


Units and Junior Accessory Dwelling Units 
 


The Council of the City of Palo Alto does ORDAIN as follows: 
 


SECTION 1.    Findings and Declarations 
 


A. Assembly Bills ( s ) 68, 587, 671, and  13 pertain to accessory dwelling 
units ADUs s s  and were approved by the California 
Legislature on September 13, 2019 and signed by the Governor on October 9, 2019;  


 
B. These bills, codified primarily in California Government Code sections 65952.2 and 65952.22 will 


become effective January 1, 2020, and provide that local ordinances that do not comply with state 
law are null and void;  


 
C. The City Council, pursuant to its police powers, has broad authority to maintain public peace, 


health, and safety of its community and preserving the quality of life for its residents; 
 


D. Palo Alto Municipal Code Section 2.04.270 authorizes the adoption of an urgency ordinance to 
protect the public peace, health or safety, where there is a declaration of the facts constituting 
the urgency and the ordinance is adopted by four-fifths of Council Members present; 


 
E. This urgency ordinance would 


new state requirements contained in ABs 68, 587, 671, and 881 and SB 13; 
 


F. An urgency ordinance that is effective immediately is necessary to avoid the immediate threat to 
public peace, health, and safety as failure to adopt this urgency ordinance could result in 


 regulations. 
 


SECTION 2.    Section 18.04.030 of Chapter 18.04 (Definitions) of Title 18 (Zoning) of the Palo Alto 
to add the following definition: 


 
-family 


residential zone, the maximum allowable amount of total gross floor area, regardless of lot size. 
 
SECTION 3.    Section 18.42.040 (Accessory and Junior Accessory Dwelling Units) of Chapter 18.42 
(Standards for Special Uses) of Title 18 (Zoning) of the PAMC  is amended 
to read as follows: 


 
18.42.040 Accessory and Junior Accessory Dwelling Units 
 
The following regulations apply to the establishment of accessory dwelling units and junior 
accessory dwelling units. 
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(a)   Accessory Dwelling Units 


 (1)  Purpose 
 


The intent of this section is to provide regulations to accommodate accessory dwelling 
units, in order to provide for variety to the city's housing stock and additional 
affordable housing opportunities. Accessory Dwelling Units shall be separate, self-
contained living units, with separate entrances from the main residence, whether 
attached or detached. The standards below are provided to minimize the impacts of 
accessory dwelling units on nearby residents and throughout the city, and to assure 
that the size and location of such dwellings is compatible with the existing or 
proposed residence on the site and with other structures in the area. 


 
(2)  Applicable Zoning Districts 


 
The establishment of an accessory dwelling unit is permitted in zoning districts when 
single-family or multifamily residential is a permitted land use. 


 
(3)  Setbacks and Daylight Plane 


 
A. Except as otherwise provided in this section, accessory dwelling units shall 


comply with the underlying zo  setbacks, including daylight 
plane requirements, except to the extent daylight plane requirements 
would preclude an accessory dwelling unit from reaching a height of 16 
feet. 


 
B. Notwithstanding subsection (a)(3)(A), no setback shall be required for an 


existing structure that is converted to or reconstructed in-place as an 
accessory dwelling unit, except as provided in subsection (a)(5) below. 


 
C. In districts permitting second story accessory dwelling units, a setback of at 


least four feet from the side and rear lot lines shall be required for an 
accessory dwelling unit constructed above a garage. 


 
(4)  Lot Coverage/Floor Area Ratio/Maximum House Size 


 
A. An accessory dwelling unit shall be included in the lot coverage and floor area 


ratio requirements applicable to the parcel. In the R-E, R-1, R-2 and RMD 
districts, and in the OS and PC districts when single-family residential is a 
permitted land use: (i) any covered parking provided for the accessory dwelling 
unit shall be included in the total floor area for the site, but shall not be 
included when determining maximum size of the accessory dwelling unit; and 
(ii) an attached accessory dwelling unit shall count towards the maximum 
house size for the primary residence on the parcel. 


 
B. Exceptions: 


 
i. Lot Coverage. When the establishment of an accessory dwelling unit on a 


parcel with a proposed or existing single family residence would result in the 
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parcel exceeding the lot coverage requirement, up to 800 square feet of the 
accessory dwelling unit shall not be included in the calculation of lot 
coverage applicable to the property. 
 


ii. Basements. In the R-1 district and all R-1 subdistricts, basement space used 
as an accessory dwelling unit, or portion thereof, shall not be included in the 
calculation of floor area for the entire site, providing the measurement from 
first finished floor to grade around the perimeter of the building is no more 
than three (3) feet. 
 


iii. Additional Floor Area. When the development of an accessory dwelling unit 
on a parcel with a proposed or existing single family residence would result in 
the parcel exceeding the maximum floor area ratio, additional floor area 
above the maximum amount otherwise permitted by the underlying zoning 
district shall be allowed. The additional floor area allowed shall be the 
minimum amount required for establishment of an 800 square foot 
accessory dwelling unit, or 220 square feet, whichever is greater. This 
additional floor area shall be permitted only to accommodate the 
development of the accessory dwelling unit and shall not be applied to the 
primary residence. 
 


iv. Maximum House Size. When the establishment of an attached accessory 
dwelling unit on a parcel with a proposed or existing single family residence 
would result in the parcel exceeding the maximum house size, up to 800 
square feet of the accessory dwelling unit shall not be included in the 
calculation of maximum house size applicable to the property. 


 
(5)  Ministerial Approval of Certain Accessory Dwelling Units 


 
Notwithstanding the provisions of subsections (a)(3), (a)(4), (a)(7), and (a)(8), the 
following applications for an accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit 
within a residential or mixed-use zone shall be ministerially approved:  


 
A.    ADU within Single-Family Residence or Accessory Structure. For a lot with a 


proposed or existing single-family dwelling, one accessory dwelling unit or junior 
accessory dwelling unit that is contained within the space of a single-family 
residence or an accessory structure, has independent exterior access from the 
residence, and provides side and rear setbacks sufficient for fire safety shall be 
permitted, subject to the following: 


 
i.   A unit proposed in an existing accessory structure under this subsection 


(a)(5)(A) may include an expansion of not more than 150 square feet beyond 
the physical dimensions of the existing accessory structure solely for the 
purposes of accommodating ingress and egress. 


 
ii.  Conversion of an existing accessory structure to an accessory dwelling unit 


may require rebuilding or substantial renovation to comply with the 
California Code of Regulations Title 24, as adopted by the City of Palo Alto. In 
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such instances, and where the existing accessory structure does not comply 
with applicable accessory dwelling unit development standards in the zoning 
district, the structure may be renovated or rebuilt, provided that: 


 
(I)    If the existing structure does not comply with the applicable 


development standards for accessory dwelling units in the zoning 
district, the renovated or rebuilt structure shall not increase the 
degree of non-compliance, such as increased height or size, or 
further intrusion into required setbacks; 


 
(II)    The renovated or rebuilt structure shall comply with subsection 


(a)(6), below, pertaining to privacy requirements. 
 


(III) Nothing in this subsection (a)(5)(A)(ii) shall restrict or prevent a 
renovated or rebuilt structure from being designed to achieve or 
improve compliance with the development standards applicable 
to an accessory dwelling unit in the zoning district.  


 
iii.  No new or separate utility connection shall be required between the 


accessory dwelling unit and utility service, such as water, sewer, and power. 
 


iv.  The accessory dwelling unit shall comply with the provisions of subsections 
(a)(6), (a)(9), and (a)(10). 
 


v.  New floor area may be added to a space converted in accordance with this 
subsection (a)(5)(A) and, other than the 150 square feet authorized by 
subsection (a)(5)(A)(i), shall comply with the all regulations set forth in 
subsection (a), including but not limited to setbacks, maximum accessory 
dwelling unit size, and height.  


 
B.   Single-Family Detached ADU. For a lot with a proposed or existing single-family 


dwelling, one detached, new construction, accessory dwelling unit that does not 
exceed 800 square feet, nor 16 feet in height, and that provides at least four-
foot side and rear yard setbacks shall be permitted. This detached accessory 
dwelling unit may be established in addition to a junior accessory dwelling unit 
established pursuant to subsection (a)(5)(A). 


 
C.   Multi-Family Attached ADU. For a lot with an existing multifamily dwelling 


structure, an accessory dwelling unit shall be permitted within the portions of 
the existing multifamily dwelling structures that are not used as livable space, 
including, but not limited to, storage rooms, boiler rooms, passageways, attics, 
basements, or garages, if each unit complies with state building standards for 
dwellings. The number of dwelling units permitted shall be at least one and up 
to 25 percent of the existing multifamily dwelling units on the lot. 


 
D.   Multi-Family Detached ADU. For a lot that has an existing multifamily dwelling, 


not more than two detached accessory dwelling units that do not exceed 16 
feet in height and that provide at least four-foot side and rear yard setbacks 
shall be permitted. 
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E.   The establishment of accessory dwelling units and junior accessory dwelling 
units pursuant to this subsection (a)(5) shall not be conditioned on the 
correction of non-conforming zoning conditions; provided, however, that 
nothing in this section shall limit the authority of the Chief Building Official to 
require correction of building standards relating to health and safety. 


 
(6)  Privacy  


 
Second story doors and decks shall not face a neighboring dwelling unit and second 
story windows shall be placed above eye-level or utilize obscured glazing. Where 
feasible, screening features, including landscaping, shall be installed between an 
two-story ADU and a neighboring dwelling. 


 
(7)  Additional Development Standards for Attached Accessory Dwelling Units 


 
A. Attached accessory dwelling units are those attached to the primary dwelling. 


All attached accessory dwelling units, other than those units established 
pursuant to subsection (a)(5), shall be subject to the additional development 
requirements specified below. 


 
B. Unit Size: The maximum size of an attached accessory dwelling unit living area, 


inclusive of a habitable basement, shall not exceed 850 square feet, or 1,000 
square feet for a unit with more than one bedroom, and shall not exceed 50% 
of the proposed or existing living area of the primary dwelling unit.  The 
minimum unit size shall be 150 square feet. 


 
C. Maximum height (including property in a special flood hazard zone): One story 


and 17 feet, or 16 feet if located in an Eichler Tract identified in the adopted 
Palo Alto Eichler Neighborhood Design Guidelines. However, in the RE District 
attached accessory dwelling units may be two stories and 30 feet. In the OS 
District, attached accessory dwelling units may be two stories and 25 feet. 


 
D. Separate Entry Required for Attached Units: A separate exterior entry shall be 


provided to serve an accessory dwelling unit. 
 
E. Except on corner lots, the accessory dwelling unit shall not have an 


entranceway facing the same lot line (property line) as the entranceway to the 
main dwelling unit unless the second entranceway is located in the rear half of 
the lot. Exterior staircases to second floor units shall be located toward the 
interior side or rear yard of the property. 
 


F. If covered parking for an accessory dwelling unit is provided in the RE zone, 
the maximum size of the covered parking area for the accessory dwelling unit 
is 200 square feet. 


 
(8)  Additional Development Standards for Detached Accessory Dwelling Units 


 
A. Detached accessory dwelling units are those detached from the primary 


dwelling. All detached accessory dwelling units, other than those units 
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established pursuant to subsection (a)(5), shall be subject to the additional 
development standards specified below.


 
B. The maximum size of the detached accessory dwelling unit living area, 


inclusive of a habitable basement, shall be 900 square feet, or 1,000 square 
feet for a unit with more than one bedroom and the minimum unit size shall 
be 150 square feet.  


 
C. Maximum height (including property in a special flood hazard zone): one story 


and 17 feet, or one story and 16 feet, if located in an Eichler Tract identified in 
the adopted Palo Alto Eichler Neighborhood Design Guidelines. 
 


D. Setbacks and Daylight Plane:  Notwithstanding subsection (a)(3)(A), a 
detached accessory dwelling unit may be located in a rear yard, but must 
maintain a minimum setback of four feet (4 ) from the side and rear property 
lines.  No basement shall encroach into a required rear yard setback. No 
portion of a building may encroach into a daylight plane beginning at a height 


for every one foot (1 , except that the 
beginning height shall be increased to the extent necessary to allow an 


. 
 


i. No projections, such as but not limited to windows, doors, mechanical 
equipment, venting or exhaust systems, shall be permitted to encroach 
into the required setbacks and daylight plane, with the exception of a roof 
eave up to two feet. 


 
E. If covered parking is provided for an accessory dwelling unit in the RE District, 


the maximum size of covered parking area for the detached accessory dwelling 
unit is 200 square feet. 


 
(9) Additional Requirements for All Accessory Dwelling Units 


 
A. Sale of Units: The accessory dwelling unit shall not be sold separately from the 


primary residence. 
 


B. Short term rentals. The accessory dwelling unit shall not be rented for periods 
of less than 30 consecutive days. 


 
C. Number of Units Allowed: Except as provided in subsection (a)(5), only one 


accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit may be located on 
any lot where an accessory dwelling unit is permitted. 


 
D. Existing Development: A single-family dwelling shall exist on the lot or shall be 


constructed on the lot in conjunction with the construction of the accessory 
dwelling unit. 


 
E. Prior to issuance of a building permit for the accessory dwelling unit, the 


owner shall record a deed restriction in a form approved by the city that: 
includes a prohibition on the sale of the accessory dwelling unit separate from 
the sale of the single-family residence; does not permit short-term rentals; 
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and restricts the size and attributes of the accessory dwelling unit to those
that conform with this Section 18.42.040.


 
F. Accessory dwelling units shall not be required to provide fire sprinklers if they 


are not required for the primary residence. 
 


G. Street Address Required: Street addresses shall be assigned to all accessory 
dwellings to assist in emergency response. 


 
H. Street Access:  When parking is provided, the accessory dwelling unit shall 


have street access from a driveway in common with the main residence in 
order to prevent new curb cuts, excessive paving, and elimination of street 
trees, unless separate driveway access will result in fewer environmental 
impacts such as paving, grading or tree removal. 


 
I. For properties listed in the Palo Alto Historic Inventory, the California Register 


of Historical Resources, the National Register of Historic Places, or considered 
a historic resource after completion of a historic resource evaluation, 
compliance with the appropriate Secretary of Inte  for the 
Treatment of Historic Properties shall be required. 


 
J. No protected tree shall be removed for the purpose of establishing an 


accessory dwelling unit unless the tree is dead, dangerous or constitutes a 
nuisance under Section 8.04.050. Any protected tree removed pursuant to 
this subsection shall be replaced in accordance with the standards in the Tree 
Technical Manual. 


 
K. Except as modified by this Section 18.42.040, the accessory dwelling unit shall 


conform to all requirements of the underlying zoning district, any applicable 
combining district, and all other applicable provisions of this Title 18. 


 
(10)  Parking 


 
A.   No additional parking shall be required for accessory dwelling units. 


 
B. Replacement parking is not required when a garage, carport, or covered 


parking structure is demolished in conjunction with the construction of an 
accessory dwelling unit. 


 
C.   Optional parking for accessory dwelling units may be provided by means of 


uncovered or tandem spaces on existing driveways within the required front 
and street side yards; covered parking and mechanical automobile parking lifts 
may be located in required side and rear yard setbacks in compliance with 
Section 18.40.050. All new parking spaces and structures shall comply with 
development standards of the underlying zoning and the applicable parking 
design standards in Chapter 18.54, except as provided below: 


  
i. The Director shall have the authority to modify required 


replacement parking spaces by up to one foot in width and length 
upon finding that the reduction is necessary to accommodate 
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parking in a location otherwise allowed under this code and is not 
detrimental to public health, safety or the general welfare. 


 
ii Existing front and street side yard driveways may be enlarged to 


the minimum extent necessary to comply with the replacement 
parking requirement above. Existing curb cuts shall not be altered 
except when necessary to promote public health, safety or the 
general welfare.  


 
(b)   Junior Accessory Dwelling Units 
 


(1) Purposes:  
 


This Section provides standards for the establishment of junior accessory dwelling units, 
an alternative to the standard accessory dwelling unit. Junior accessory dwelling units 
will typically be smaller than an accessory dwelling unit, will be constructed within the 
walls of an existing or proposed single family structure and requires owner occupancy in 
the single family residence where the unit is located. 


 
(2) Development Standards. Junior accessory dwelling units shall comply with the  following 


standards: 
 


A. Number of Units Allowed:  Except as provided in subsection (a)(5), either one 
accessory dwelling unit or one junior accessory dwelling unit, may be located 
on any lot that permits a single-family dwelling. A junior accessory dwelling 
unit shall only be located on a lot which already contains one legal single-
family dwelling or where a new single-family dwelling is proposed.  


 
B. Size: A junior accessory dwelling unit shall not exceed 500 square feet in size. 


 
C.   Lot Coverage/Floor Area Ratio: 


 
i. A junior accessory dwelling unit shall be included in the calculation of lot 


coverage and floor area ratio applicable to the property. 
 
ii. A primary residence with a junior accessory dwelling unit shall be 


permitted to develop an additional 50 square feet of floor area above the 
maximum amount of floor area otherwise permitted by the underlying 
zoning district.  


 
D. Owner Occupancy: The owner of a parcel proposed for a junior accessory 


dwelling unit shall occupy as a primary residence either the primary dwelling or 
the junior accessory dwelling. Owner-occupancy is not required if the owner is 
a governmental agency, land trust, or housing organization. 


 
E. Sale Prohibited: A junior accessory dwelling unit shall not be sold independently 


of the primary dwelling on the parcel. 
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F. Short term rentals: The junior accessory dwelling unit shall not be rented for 
periods of less than 30 consecutive days. 


 
G. Location of Junior Accessory Dwelling Unit: A junior accessory dwelling unit 


shall be created within the existing walls of an existing or proposed primary 
dwelling. 


 
H. Separate Entry Required: A separate exterior entry shall be provided to serve a 


junior accessory dwelling unit.  A junior accessory dwelling may include an 
interior entry to the main living area and a second interior doorway for sound 
attenuation. 


 
I. Kitchen Requirements: The junior accessory dwelling unit shall include an 


efficiency kitchen, requiring the following components: 
 


i.    A cooking facility with appliances, and 
 
ii.   A food preparation counter and storage cabinets that are of reasonable 


size in relation to the size of the junior accessory dwelling unit. 
 


J. Parking. No additional parking is required. 
 
K. Fire Protection; Utility Service. For the purposes of any fire or life protection 


ordinance or regulation or for the purposes of providing service for water, 
sewer, or power, a junior accessory dwelling unit shall not be considered a 
separate or new unit. 


 
L. Deed Restriction. Prior to the issuance of a building permit for a junior 


accessory dwelling unit, the owner shall record a deed restriction in a form 
approved by the city that includes a prohibition on the sale of the junior 
accessory dwelling unit separate from the sale of the single-family residence, 
requires owner-occupancy consistent with subsection (b)(2)(D) above, does 
not permit short-term rentals, and restricts the size and attributes of the 
junior dwelling unit to those that conform with this section. 


 
SECTION 4.    Any provision of the Palo Alto Municipal Code or appendices thereto inconsistent with 
the provisions of this Ordinance, to the extent of such inconsistencies and no further, is hereby 
repealed or modified to that extent necessary to effect the provisions of this Ordinance. 


SECTION 5.    If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is for any 
reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. The City 
Council hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance and each and every section, 
subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase not declared invalid or unconstitutional without regard to 
whether any portion of the ordinance would be subsequently declared invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
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SECTION 6. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is deemed 
not to conform with the a mandatory provision of Government Code Section 65852.2 or
65852.22, such section, subsection ,sentence, clause, or phrase shall be deemed stricken from 
the Ordinance and the corresponding provision of Government Code Section 65852.2 or 
65852.22, if any, shall apply. 
 
SECTION 7.    The Council finds that the adoption of this Ordinance is exempt from the provisions 
of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 
21080.17 and CEQA Guidelines sections 15061(b)(3), 15301, 15302 and 15305 because it 
constitutes 
requirements related to accessory dwelling units as established in Government Code Sections 
65852.2 and 65852.22, and these changes are also likely to result in few additional dwelling units 
dispersed throughout the City. As such, it can be seen with certainty that the proposed action will 
not have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment.  
 
SECTION 8.    This ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by four-fifths of the City Council. 
 
INTRODUCED:    January 13, 2020 
 
PASSED:   January 13, 2020 
 
AYES:  CORMACK, DUBOIS, FILSETH, FINE, KNISS, KOU, TANAKA 
 
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
Assistant City Attorney  City Manager 
  
 
 


    __________________________________ 
    Director of Planning & Community 
    Environment 
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Ten Survey Questions Regarding ADUs and Responses (February 2020)


1. What are common challenges that you have experienced when submitting for, or getting 
approval of, an ADU application? 
 


 Lack of City preparedness or understanding of State Bills regarding ADUs. Challenges as 
to which departments need to review plans when a property is in the flood zone. 


 Conflicting interpretations of State law (i.e. Fire Marshal re: sprinklers) 
 Getting other city agencies (PW and Utilities) to respond quickly and proactively 
 Cumbersome process to record deed restrictions  
 Requirements that show up during plan check that were not previously stated 
 There are too many (about 8) forms required at submittal and it changes every time. We 


need a standard application checklist. 
 


2. How does the current City review process for ADUs impact the cost of the project for the home 
owner?  What changes would you suggest, to reduce those costs? 
 


 Keeping documentation costs as low as possible by requiring the minimal drawings 
would help lower costs 


 Consider not requiring a survey in situations where proposal clearly would not have any 
chance of violating zoning (such as height lower than allowed by one or two feet and 
setbacks one or two feet more than minimum required) 


 Time! This should be an expedited approval. The longer it takes, the more the cost rises. 
 Reconsider Green Building review-cumbersome process that is too adversarial. Rather, 


just let a trusted and licensed design professional sign off on code compliance  
 Increase exemption for fees to 800sf instead of current 750sf. Do not require Tier 2 GB. 
  to 


move forward and exactly what to expect. 
 Full sets of plans are submitted for each department reviewing a project (20 sheets). 


After they review, these plans go into the recycle. Multiply this by all the projects, this is 
a ton of waste. Most projects could be reviewed electronically. Require 2 full sets and 
have others review those 
 


3. What are the information sources that you and your clients rely on to understand the 
regulations that guide the development of ADUs? Is there information, especially from the City, 
that is currently outlined in handouts, checklists, or readily available? 
 


 the Palo Alto Zoning Ordinance Tech Manual for Single Family Residential Zones needs to 
be updated, and should also include ADUs 


 Online PA website is unhelpful; the information needs to be collected from all 
departments and assembled in one place with online fillable forms 


 Could use graphics to make it easier to understand, like the Tech Manual. 
 State Bill Language is a main source 
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 HCD memos 
 


4. When considering the total amount of time spent on an ADU project, how much time do you spend 
on design and communicating with your client when compared to the time that you spend working 
with City staff once the application is submitted?  (e.g. 50/50%, 40/60%, etc.)? 
60/40 


 60/40 
 Permitting takes about 10% of our total time  
 80/20% 
 75/25 


 
5. What are the common questions you receive from your clients related to ADUs? 


 
 Where can an ADU go on a lot/building; how does it impact the floor area allowed; what 


are the setbacks, height; permitting and development fees and/or taxes; rental and 
reporting requirements 


 What else will the City make me do - that I had no intention of doing - that will cost me 
time and money? 


 Utilities and Public Works tend to have expensive requirements  sewer connections, 
backflow preventers, undergrounding electrical power, etc 
 


6. What changes to current ADU regulations would you like to see implemented in the next ADU 
code update? 
 


 Allowing two story ADU designs 
 Increase exemption for fees to 800sf instead of at current 750sf 
 Do not require Tier 2 GB 
 Simplified Energy analysis/prescriptive standards or reduced review  
 Eliminate Flood Zone restrictions  
 Simplified green building review-current process is very time intensive  
 


readings and/or ADU setbacks and not zoning setbacks 
 ADU to match the architecture of the primary house 
 Clarify that a detached accessory unit requires 3 feet separation 
 No replacement covered parking for JADU 
 No separate sewer line - connect to closest even if through main house 
 Remove the requirements of 18.70.100 to allow roof framing replacement 


 
7. Have any of your clients expressed interest in the concept of deed restricting their properties as 


affordable ADUs? 
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 Not one! Everyone either has a personal (usually family) use in mind, or sees it as a gold 
mine 
 


8. What are some ways you think the ADU review process could be streamlined in order to 
facilitate an over the counter approval? 
 


 Have a set of pre-approved plans that can be easily implemented on most lots with 
minor tweaks 


 Although over the counter is a goal, realistically there are enough unique design 
situations that would prevent it. But the first pass review could be sequential at the 
counter, with Urban Forestry, Fire, and Planning giving comments or approval. Then 
Building could take it in for structural review (if not conventionally framed) with those 
other departments, approved and done with 


 Get Utilities to cooperate-standardized connections by private contractors  
 Get PW to cooperate-no grading and drainage review  
 Keep the rules clear and brief; if the proposal meets the rules, it gets approved. An ADU 


approval should be no more complicated than a kitchen + bath remodel 
 Clarify how ADU review process works if permitted at the same time or within an open 


development application for a new primary house or house addition project. 
 Create a 20-minute preliminary process to provide feedback based on limited review 


 
9. What are the barriers that you anticipate may prevent ADU applications from being approved 


over the counter? 
 


 ADU proposed concurrent with a new house application 
 Lack of flexible thinking on the part of the plan checker. Lack of clarity on the rules from 


one department to the next. 
 Utility connections  
 Energy efficiency analysis  
 Flood zone properties 


 
10. What are your thoughts on establishing an appointment-based time slot system for having staff 


review and potentially approve ADU applications over the counter (e.g. Every Monday from 
9:00am to 12:00pm, appointments occurring once every hour)? 
 


 create a bottleneck. I would rather see formal intake and quick 
plan check review rather than limited over-the-counter reviews. 


 I like it! Would require careful advance exposition of potential pitfalls in required 
application materials uniquely in Palo Alto, ie requirements for new utility connections 
(the joys of sewage ejectors), Urban forestry/canopy replacement, hardship imposition 
of Tier 2 GB requirements 


 One of my clients suggested a designated ADU kiosk that has all the info needed to 
understand the rules, and that would be staffed at regular times  e.g. Tuesdays and 
Thursdays from 10am  2pm  and have handouts available when the staff was not. OTC 
applications could be folded into the kiosk times or be in addition. 
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 only when ADU project is the only active permit (i.e. not where a remodel or new house 
application would trigger Individual Review or some other review process such as an 
HIE). Allow for option for low cost pre-application meeting. 


 It would be best to offer this 2x per week as some people may not be able to come in 
Monday from 9:00am to 12:00pm 
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Attachment D: More Information Regarding Outreach
 
Architects/Contractors Input 
Staff reached out to a group of 15 architects/contractors that commonly perform work in the 
City of Palo Alto and received feedback. These community stakeholders provided insightful 
comments, relaying issues and concerns, enumerated below: 


1. Lack of clear understanding by city staff of new state code regulations 
2. Different checklists that do not capture all the requirements needed to get approved 
3. Cumbersome process to get deed restriction recorded 
4. Look at establishing an Over the Counter process for ADUS 
5. Increase exemption for Development Impact Fees on ADUs 
6. Reconsider Green Building Requirements for ADUs  Currently requires Tier 2 GB 
7. Update City website to include current regulations 
8. Update Technical Manual to include ADU regulations 
9. Consider allowing two story ADUs 
10. Update HVAC requirements for ADUs 
11. Do not require replacement parking for garages converted to a JADU 
12. Remove grading and drainage requirements 
13. Remove flood zone requirements 


 
The draft ordinance addresses Items 3, 9, 10, and 11. The ordinance: (a) Removes the deed 
restriction requirement for ADUs (item 3); (b) Clarifies that lofts can be allowed for ADUs, 
whether attached or detached (item 9) where an upper floor area with over five feet in head 
height is counted towards the gross floor area for the site/unit; (c) Includes language allowing 
HVAC and other noise producing equipment to follow the setbacks of the accessory dwelling 
units rather than setbacks of the primary house (item 10); and (d) Enables the conversion of 
garages into JADUs and provides that replacement spaces can be located within the front yard 
setback (item 11).  


 
Staff is considering implementing other suggestions to address items 1, 2, 4, 7, and 8. These 
include updating the website and checklist information, creating handouts, and express 
permitting following adoption of the updated ordinance.  The proposed ordinance should 


The ordinance does not address Items 5, 6, 12, and 
13 as discussed in the Regulations Not Proposed section of the staff report. 
 
Staff ADU Strike Team 
PDS staff formed an ADU strike team  to discuss streamlining the code and processes to help to 
encourage ADU/JADU development. The strike team provided input into earlier versions of the 
draft ordinance, which was then circulated to planners for further input. Overall, PDS staff 
supported the changes. A remaining concern relates to the interplay of ADU construction and 


historic register.  
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1


1


Accessory Dwelling Units
Community MeetingMay 19, 2020


2


ADU/JADU Statistics
4th Quarter 2019 ADU Report: https://bit.ly/3cHvwNr


62 ADU/JADU permits issued in 2019
122 ADU/JADU permits issued since 2015


Most units are one-bedroom in R-1, avg size 466 sf,
garage conversions is the trend
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ADU/JADU Laws
Fall 2019: State laws became effective January 1, 2020
Palo Alto modified its ADU regulations in January 2020
https://bit.ly/2Xg262B, valid until January 31, 2021
Updated ordinance and staff report for May 27, 2020
Planning and Transportation Commission to be published
Friday May 22; access meeting via Zoom � instructions at
https://bit.ly/36eusOx (or watch Channel 26/MidPenMedia)
Send comments to planning.commission@cityofpaloalto.org


4


– Lot Size: Cannot adopt a minimum lot size
– Parking: Cannot require replacement of off street parking lost as a result of


garage conversion to ADU
– Unit Size: Cannot adopt maximum unit sizes below 850sf for one bedroom


and 1,000sf for two+ bedroom detached ADUs
– ADU must allow: a detached ADU of 800sf, 16 feet in height, with 4 foot


setbacks; setbacks follow normal rules for attached units under this provision
(City can�t apply zoning regulations (e.g. lot coverage, FAR) to prohibit)


– Zero setback for conversions/reconstruction of an existing structure in place
– Ministerial process, no owner occupancy required for ADUs (JADUs yes)
– Required action on permit within 60 days, unless ADU is proposed with


a new single family residence or applicant agrees to extension
– Expanded the unit types via �ministerial� approval


• Up to one JADU + one new detached ADU
• Non livable space in multifamily residential buildings conversions
• Detached ADUs on multifamily residential lots


State Laws January 2020
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4’


4’


Example: Detached ADU Setbacks


6


Updated January 13, 2020 to minimum extent
necessary to comply with State�s new laws
Adds new categories of ADUs ministerially approved
Removes owner occupancy requirements for ADU;
still required for JADU by state
Removes discretionary standards and processes from
privacy regulations
Removes the requirement to replace parking for
garage conversions
Allows reconstructed structures to maintain existing
setbacks/non conforming conditions


Interim Urgency Ordinance
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Community Input Thus Far
Staff reached out to a
group of 15 applicants and
asked 10 questions about
the ordinance/process for
ADUs
A few questions were:
1) �what are challenges
applicants typically face?�,
2) �what suggested
changes would you like to
see in the updated
ordinance?�, and
3) �are residents interested
in deed restricting their
units to be affordable?�
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Updated Ordinance 2020


Staff prepared an
ordinance to further refine
the City�s ADU regulations
in the context of these new
state mandates and other
recommended changes
The updated ordinance
seeks guidance from PTC
and Council in the
following topic areas:
parking, floor area,
setbacks, kitchen
requirements, and height
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Updated Ordinance 2020


This community meeting is
the second public outreach
effort to collect feedback
from residents about the
City�s submittal
process/ordinance
The feedback received in
this meeting will be
summarized to PTC on 5/27
and incorporated into the
ordinance for subsequent
PTC/Council meetings
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Overall project cost the most significant roadblock to homeowners
Meeting building codes as they become more rigid (energy efficiency,
all electric) codes may be difficult
Addressing utilities requirementsmay be hard in certain instances
(utility upgrades).


Question 1: Biggest Roadblock?


3.e
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Misinterpretation of the code and submittal requirements.
Assumption ADUs don�t have to provide the same/similar materials for review
and approval
– Mandatory codes include energy efficiency, structural integrity, zoning


compliance.
– From a permitting standpoint, ADUs are a smaller version of the main home


Question 2: Common permitting mistake?


12
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For survey responses, please email 
to Garrett Sauls at 


Garrett.Sauls@CityofPaloAlto.org
Please try to provide them by no later than Friday 5/22 so that I can 


compile the information into my PTC presentation


Send comments on ordinance to 
planning.commission@cityofpaloalto.org
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From: Ray Dempsey
To: Planning Commission
Subject: RPP for residents near University Ave.
Date: Tuesday, May 26, 2020 5:28:17 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Be cautious of opening attachments and clicking
on links.
________________________________

I have lived in the 1000 block of Bryant Street for twenty-eight years and have seen it grow from a residential street
to a parking lot.  Ten years or so ago, I was one of four area residents, Sandy Peters, Michael Hodos, Ken Alsman,
and me,  that brought the parking issue to the attention of the then City Council.  We spoke to City plan that
supported business but not at the cost of residents.  I researched the U.S. Supreme Court decision that allows a city
to set RPP as a right.  There are ample reports of cities around the nation that recognize the safety issues and
annoyances that occur when cars fill neighborhood streets.  I hope that ten years of constant appeals to the City are
finally recognized and some form of real parking relief is supported.

Ray Dempsey
1036 Bryant Street
Palo Alto, CA 94301

mailto:rademps@aol.com
mailto:Planning.Commission@cityofpaloalto.org


From: Neilson Buchanan
To: Ray Dempsey; Planning Commission
Subject: Re: Planning Commission Study Session May 27: RPPs
Date: Tuesday, May 26, 2020 4:59:43 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Be cautious
of opening attachments and clicking on links.

thanks,    what we really need from you is a two sentence email to ptc supporting our
report...no need to add praise...just note your very long history of being involved. 
here is  the email address...  if you can get one or two more people to send such a
simple email   please do.... volume of email means much

planning.commission@cityofpaloalto.org

Neilson Buchanan
155 Bryant Street
Palo Alto, CA  94301
 
650 329-0484
650 537-9611 cell
cnsbuchanan@yahoo.com

On Tuesday, May 26, 2020, 04:43:50 PM PDT, Ray Dempsey <rademps@aol.com> wrote:

Hi Neilson,

I am pleased to see how the residents are still hammering away at RPP and I think you must have some
secret source of strength to keep on.  (a super-hero cape that you wear to bed at night?).  I didn’t think I’d
quit but it was eating up my retirement and at 87 I don’t have a shit-load of time left even if I didn’t have to
dodge the virus (age and male).  But you made me think of an early attempt to get the Council thinking in
terms bigger than “how to placate residents without pissing off the developers.”  This was something I
tried.  I forget who was on the Council then.  If you think it can be sued somehow, feel free.  If not, that’s
OK too.  You may be well beyond trying to get them to "think different" (nod to Steve Jobs).  

Ray

When we (residents) first spoke to the Palo Alto City Council ten years ago, a different body than current
members, about an RPP program, we were a group of four, Sandy Peters,  Michael Hodos, Ken Alsman,
and me.  I wanted to make the point that it IS possible for a governing body to make wise decisions where
most parties gain.  If you want to work it into anything you are doing, you can use it,  If not, I understand. 
I enjoy recalling the moment when the Council were looking at one another “NHUH?” When I mentioned
the wine industry.  I thought wine would be a good item to maintain attention and I  addressed the Council
(as I recall) as follows:

“Mayor, Council Members, I would like to use my time to mention something that is going to make you
think I am addressing an issue that has no relevance, California’s wine industry, a major force globally. 
Please bear with me.  Years ago California wines were were seen as drinkable with cute labels, nothing
more.  The state government essentially legislated changes that made California wines compete with the
best and win.

mailto:cnsbuchanan@yahoo.com
mailto:rademps@aol.com
mailto:Planning.Commission@cityofpaloalto.org
mailto:cnsbuchanan@yahoo.com


“They did two things: made it law that if a label said the wine was chardonnay, it had to have a minimum
of 51% chardonnay grapes.  The same with all labeled wines.  No more filling bottles with a white wine
and calling it chardonnay and if they ran out of chardonnay labels, slap on chablis labels.  What the hell,
white is white. Red is red.

“The second, and more important, was to change the way the state taxed wineries.  Previous to the law
change, the state would tax all the wine on the winery property.  If the winery held over some wine for a
year or two, it got taxed each year motivating the wineries to sell everything each year.  The law became,
once taxed, it was taxed, changing the winery incentive to age good wines into great wines.

“The result is obvious, wineries began bottling and blending wines with an eye to creating a great
experience, the state treasury lost the double dip but gained with increased income from an expanding
industry, California gained a reputation for unexcelled wines, and wine lovers . . . I don’t have to tell the
people in this room what they gained.

“My point is not that California has great wines.  We know that.  My point is that without a state legislature
that had the wisdom to see what change could bring, we would still be drinking wine that tastes like coca
cola.  You have the opportunity, in your wisdom and with the power as elected officials, you can serve
both the residents and businesses with a fair parking program.  That is why you are sitting where you are.

“Thank you for your attention.”

On May 26, 2020, at 1:49 PM, Neilson Buchanan <cnsbuchanan@yahoo.com> wrote:

Thank you for the opportunity to discuss and refine RPPs.  Attached is a
report from neighborhood leaders who were able to collaborate since
receiving the staff report on Friday evening.  We are in the process of
expanding our outreach to neighbors who have not been available during
the holiday weekend.

We look forward to Wednesday study session and future work with staff,
PTC and Council.

Neilson Buchanan
155 Bryant Street
Palo Alto, CA  94301
 
650 329-0484
650 537-9611 cell
cnsbuchanan@yahoo.com
<Resident Input for RPP Study  Session - PTC 5-27-2020 (1).pdf>

mailto:cnsbuchanan@yahoo.com
mailto:cnsbuchanan@yahoo.com


From: Neilson Buchanan
To: Planning Commission
Cc: Council, City; Kamhi, Philip; Hur, Mark; Baird, Nathan; Allen Akin; Carol Scott; Wolfgang Dueregger; Chris Robell;

Fred Balin; Taylor Brady; Paul Machado; Norm Beamer; Michael Hodos; Jan Merryweather; Sallyann Rudd;
Malcolm Roy Beasley; Leslie Caine; Hamilton Hitchings; Rebecca Sanders; Jeff Levinsky; Furman, Sheri; Marion
Odell; Tricia Dolkas; Jerry Smith; Bruce Heister; Nancy Adler; Meg Barton; Harris Barton; Elaine Meyer; Mary
Dimit; David Kwoh; Fred Kohler; KJ Chang; J T Gusilin; Jeff Greenfield; Monica Yeung Arima; Ray Dempsey;
Janine Bisharat; Fred Bisharat; Susie and Gary Hornbeek; Lauren Burton; Lora Smith; LaNell Mimmack; Jim
Mimmack; Mike Griffin; Lait, Jonathan; Clerk, City; Geetha Srikantan; Hetterly, Jennifer; Holzemer/hernandez;
Karen Machado; Ted Davids

Subject: Planning Commission Study Session May 27: RPPs
Date: Tuesday, May 26, 2020 1:50:13 PM
Attachments: Resident Input for RPP Study Session - PTC 5-27-2020 (1).pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Be cautious
of opening attachments and clicking on links.

Thank you for the opportunity to discuss and refine RPPs.  Attached is a report from
neighborhood leaders who were able to collaborate since receiving the staff report on
Friday evening.  We are in the process of expanding our outreach to neighbors who
have not been available during the holiday weekend.

We look forward to Wednesday study session and future work with staff, PTC and
Council.

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
mailto:Philip.Kamhi@CityofPaloAlto.org
mailto:Mark.Hur@CityofPaloAlto.org
mailto:Nathan.Baird@CityofPaloAlto.org
mailto:akin@arden.org
mailto:cscott@crossfieldllc.com
mailto:wolfgangdueregger@gmail.com
mailto:chris_robell@yahoo.com
mailto:fbalin@gmail.com
mailto:tabrady88@gmail.com
mailto:plmachado@gmail.com
mailto:nhbeamer@yahoo.com
mailto:mehodos@mac.com
mailto:jan@hamilton.com
mailto:sallyannr03@gmail.com
mailto:beasley@stanford.edu
mailto:lrgc@sbcglobal.net
mailto:hitchingsh@yahoo.com
mailto:rebsanders@gmail.com
mailto:jeff@levinsky.org
mailto:sheri11@earthlink.net
mailto:marionodell7@gmail.com
mailto:marionodell7@gmail.com
mailto:triciadolkas@gmail.com
mailto:jerry.smith@sonic.net
mailto:bruce.heister@gmail.com
mailto:adcomm2@pacbell.net
mailto:megbarton@me.com
mailto:harris@bartonam.com
mailto:emeyer3@gmail.com
mailto:marydimit@mindspring.com
mailto:marydimit@mindspring.com
mailto:dkwoh@yahoo.com
mailto:fkohler@sbcglobal.net
mailto:kuojungchang@gmail.com
mailto:jguislin@gmail.com
mailto:jeffg13@gmail.com
mailto:myarima@gmail.com
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Resident Input for RPP Study Session 
Planning and Transportation Commission Meeting 


May 27, 2020 
 
 
Introduction 
The study session on parking to be held by the Planning and Transportation Commission on 
May 27, 2020, is an important first step for a more rational and effective parking policy and 
practice for all of Palo Alto.  We appreciate Staff, Commissioners and Council members 
undertaking this complex issue during a difficult period in Palo Alto’s long history of solving 
difficult problems. 
 
We also appreciate the opportunity to provide input to the study session as included in this 
document.  We are resident leaders from the RPPs in Downtown, Evergreen Park and Old Palo 
Alto who have collaborated over the Memorial Day weekend.  Other neighborhoods are being 
contacted and invited to contribute to these principles and recommended actions. 
 
 
Key Principles to Guide Action 
The following key principles are important to residents and should be used to guide any policies 
and practices with respect to the creation and management of Residential Permit Programs.   


1. The values expressed in the Palo Alto Comprehensive Plan are paramount.  City policies 
must be guided by the goal to “promote commerce but not at the expense of residential 
neighborhoods.”  This policy provides clear guidance that the quality of life in residential 
neighborhoods is to be respected. 


 
2. RPPs have a strong and well-established basis for ensuring neighborhood quality.  The 


council and citizens have immense power to design the details of commercial parking 
loads on residential neighborhoods. Here are two important citations: 
 
Supreme Court excerpt from Arlington v Richards (1977) No. 76-1418 


“To reduce air pollution and other environmental effects of automobile 
commuting, a community reasonably may restrict on-street parking available to 
commuters, thus encouraging reliance on car pools and mass transit.  The same 
goal is served by assuring convenient parking to residents who leave their cars 
at home during the day.  A community may also decide that restrictions on the 
flow of outside traffic into particular residential areas would enhance the quality 
of life thereby reducing noise, traffic hazards, and litter.”  


 
 California Vehicle Code 22507: 


(a) Local authorities may, by ordinance or resolution, prohibit or restrict the 
stopping, parking, or standing of vehicles, including, but not limited to, 
vehicles that are six feet or more in height (including any load thereon) 
within 100 feet of any intersection, on certain streets or highways, or 
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portions thereof, during all or certain hours of the day.  The ordinance or 
resolution may include a designation of certain streets upon which 
preferential parking privileges are given to residents and merchants and 
merchants adjacent to the streets for their use and the use of their guests, 
under which the residents and merchants may be issued a permit or 
permits that exempt them from the prohibition or restriction of the 
ordinance or resolution.  With the exception of alleys, the ordinance or 
resolution shall not apply until signs or markings giving adequate notice 
thereof have been placed. A local ordinance or resolution adopted pursuant 
to this section may contain provisions that are reasonable and necessary to 
ensure the effectiveness of a preferential parking program. 


(b) An ordinance or resolution adopted under this section may also authorize 
preferential parking permits for members of organizations, professions, or 
other designated groups, including, but not limited to, school personnel, to 
park on specified streets if the local authority determines that the use of 
the permits will not adversely affect parking conditions for residents and 
merchants in the area. 


 


3. The phrase “not at the expense of residential neighborhoods” establishes a long-term 
objective of no all-day, non-resident employee permit parking in residential areas 
whether achieved by RPPs or through concerted and effective actions taken to eliminate 
commercial demand for parking in residential areas.  The goal is not how much parking 
in neighborhoods we can allocate to commercial interests for their own private gain, but 
instead is to ensure commercial entities provide for their own needs so as not to 
impinge on residential neighborhoods. 1  


 
Indeed, the first RPP in Palo Alto (i.e., College Terrace) and the most recent RPP (i.e., Old 
Palo Alto) have demonstrated that this standard is workable and should not change. To 
the extent possible, this is the standard toward which other neighborhoods would like 
to move.   
 
We note that residential neighborhoods will continue to carry the short-term, 2-hr load 
for residents, their guests, residential service providers, and other two-hour parking by 
anyone and especially by customers of retail businesses, restaurants and medical and 
dental offices, who may park anywhere in residential neighborhoods.   
 


                                                        
1 Residential parking programs have been characterized by some as attempts to “privatize a public asset.”  This is 
completely backwards.  Developers and other commercial interests are required to pay for many of their own 
infrastructure costs, and adequate parking or meaningful alternatives to commuting by car are not qualitatively 
different.  When Palo Alto sells parking in a residential neighborhood to a private business that neglected to 
provide on-site parking for its employees, the City is subsidizing a private business using a public asset.  When the 
City sells parking rights (via $100,000 ‘in lieu’ fees, which do not factor in land costs) to a business that is then 
allowed employee parking in a taxpayer-funded parking garage in perpetuity, it is arguably also allowing the 
privatization of public assets. 
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4. Until such time as this long-term goal can be achieved, the limits on all-day parking non-


resident permits to commercial employees should be negotiated with the affected 
residential community.  Different communities may have different schedules for moving 
toward the goal of elimination of the need for employee parking permits. 
 
Indeed, there has been a history of RPP development in Palo Alto with substantial work 
done by affected residents to document neighborhood needs and to propose workable 
solutions.  Appendix A illustrates the often-times arduous process by which real 
progress has been made.  Resident collaboration is key to any successful efforts to 
protect neighborhood quality of life. 
 


5.  Until such time as no employee, non-resident permits are sold in residential 
neighborhoods, quality standards that take into account the multiple dimensions of 
“quality of life” in neighborhoods will be critically important for evaluating the degree to 
which life in these neighborhoods is negatively impacted by commercial intrusion.  We 
appreciate Staff efforts to bring quality standards up for an open discussion. 
 
However, the Staff report2 mentions only one type of “quality” standard, i.e. capacity 
utilization.  This reduces the quality of life in neighborhoods to a single dimension of 
how many parking spaces on average are available for parking.  Such capacity standards 
are appropriate for commercial parking lots that have as their primary objective 
providing as much parking as possible, but are wholly inadequate and inappropriate for 
residential neighborhoods that are more than simply an inventory of parking spaces. 
 
Again, the objective should NOT be to maximize the amount of employee parking that 
can be squeezed into a neighborhood. 
 


6. RPPs, like other City services, should not be judged solely by whether or not they are 
self-sustaining in a monetary sense and should never be discontinued predicated on lack 
of funding. There are always smarter trade-offs if the city is short of funds (e.g., increase 
the ticket price of an RPP violation above $50, etc.).  Residents expect that the city will 
not apply dichotomous thinking and use budget challenges as an excuse as to why they 
cannot prevent residential neighborhoods from becoming commercial parking lots. 
 
We support all efforts by the City to engage in actions to increase the efficiency with 
which RPPs are managed and to reduce costs which do not harm the essential mission 
and purpose of the RPPs, including the proposed automated license plate reading 
technology. 
 


                                                        
2 Planning and Transportation Commission, Staff Report #10873, “Study Session to Review and Discuss the FY 20-
21 Parking Work Plan Including Policy Options for the Residential Preferential Parking Program,” submitted by 
Philip Kamhi. 
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Recommended Immediate Actions: 


With these principles in mind, we make the following recommendations for immediate action. 
 


1. Capitalize on the opportunity to improve parking practices by developing a plan to move 
non-resident permits sold in Evergreen Park and Mayfield to the new public California 
Ave. garage, in line with a target of zero such permits in these neighborhoods.  The 
previous addition of parking spaces along El Camino Real to the Evergreen Park and 
Southgate RPPs already provides sufficient parking spaces for businesses located along 
El Camino Real. 


 
The reallocation of permits cannot wait as once practices and habits are established for 
the new garage, a new ‘status quo’ will be in place that will be extremely difficult to 
change. The Staff report lists this item only as “Complete Schedule TBD.” (item 28) 
 


2. Proceed immediately with the LRP and new parking management system for 
neighborhoods as well as the commercial districts to reduce the costs of RPP 
management. 
 


3. The successful RPP for Old Palo Alto should be permanently added with no changes to 
other proven RPP programs when it comes up for review in November. 
 


4. Disclose any expected impact on neighborhood parking and traffic that might be caused 
by commercial district “parklets” that require the elimination of some parking capacity 
to allow businesses to use sidewalk space for their operations.  The City must clearly 
state the expected duration of such “parklets” prior to their approval and 
implementation.  Affected neighborhoods should be consulted and options for reducing 
the negative impact on neighborhoods be considered. 
  


5. Establish a timeline to apply technology currently applied to RPPs to both University 
Avenue and California Avenue commercial districts.  This includes the Permit 
Management System and modern enforcement technology.   
 


6. Develop a timeline to implement modern signage technology in all garages in 
Downtown and California Avenue.  Without signage indicating available parking spaces, 
commercial district parking utilization will be sub-optimal especially at night and mid-
day if parklets reduce parking capacity. 
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Recommended Medium Term Actions: 


1. The City must clearly and transparently state its goals for any parking program.3  Until 
we agree on a set of objectives, we cannot design a system to meet them nor agree on 
actions to take.  In addition, the City must clearly and transparently state the 
assumptions on which its proposed actions depend, i.e., assumptions regarding 
increased housing that is under-parked, construction of additional commercial office 
space that is under-parked, commuting patterns, plans for alternative, i.e., non-auto, 
means of transportation, etc. 
 
Staff must develop a set of standards against which to measure the impact of parking 
loads on residential neighborhoods.  Capacity utilization is not, and should not be, the 
sole measure of quality of life.  The success of an established RPP should not be 
measured by high permit sales and occupancy levels.  The goal of an RPP is to lower 
occupancy levels and improve other quality of life indicators.   RPP continuation should 
not be contingent on occupancy levels nor the number of residential permits AFTER the 
program is put in place.    


 
2. Pricing policies are critically important.  The City should publish the current fee 


schedules for all RPPS and establish updates that encourage parking in commercial 
garages and discourages commercial parking in residential neighborhoods. The City 
should develop a timeline to present integrated pricing policies for residential 
neighborhoods and commercial zones.  In particular, we support the following 
statement in the staff report to the PTC: 


 
“Consider increasing the cost of an RPP employee parking permit so that it 
is greater than the cost of a reserved space in a garage or lot, in order to 
incentivize parkers to choose off-street parking over on-street parking.” 


 
3. City staff should be responsible for measuring and managing any increase in the parking 


load generated by ADUs, Airbnb, and new housing that is under-parked.  Policies for the 
inclusion of residents of under-parked housing developments must be developed and 
explicitly stated.  The currently being constructed “car-lite” development on the corner 
of Oregon Expressway and El Camino Real was approved with the understanding that 
residents would not be eligible for RPP permits. 


 
4. In situations such as the Downtown RPP that experiences substantial intrusion of non-


resident permit parking, the City should develop a reduction program to systematically 
reduce non-resident permits by 10% per year over a 5 to 8-year time period.  When City 


                                                        
3 One recent Staff report to the City Council notes an objective to “maximize the available parking” in residential 
neighborhoods.  It is unclear exactly what is meant by that statement, but if this refers to maximizing the parking 
that occurs in neighborhoods, it appears to be antithetical to protecting the quality of life in those areas. 
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parking garage capacity is available and/or new garages built, reduction of non-resident 
permits can be accelerated. 
 


5. Reconsider efforts directed toward transportation demand management programs.  
TDM reforms can be deferred due to budget and staffing constraints, but it is important 
to be on record that all past Council and Staff TDM efforts have been purely aspirational 
and political fluff.  TDMs must hold property owners and tenants accountable with 
carrots and sticks. 


 
6. Since transportation and traffic are top priorities of the City Council, the Office of 


Transportation should outline its ability to address neighborhood traffic in FY 2020-21 
and FY 2021-22.  This summary should be available during the mid-year review of FY 
2020-21 budgets. 
 


7. The PTC and City Council should embrace a thorough review of commercial parking 
demand created by City ordnances and by the unwritten application of parking 
“benefits” granted to Parking Assessment Districts.  The discriminatory privileges of PAD 
commercial properties versus non-PAD properties needs the light of day.  The City 
Council should schedule a study session in 2020 to understand and disclose the 
unwritten privileges granted to property owners within Parking Assessment Districts. 
 


8. For over ten years, Staff and Council have failed to respond to residents’ pleas that 
lower income workers deserve access to advantages of publicly-owned and operated 
city garages and surface lots.  If the Council sincerely wants to give support to struggling 
businesses and employees of goods and services retailers, a new pricing policy can easily 
be adopted.   Denying lower income workers access to commercial core parking is 
inappropriate in light of the steep curve of business recovery. 


 
9. With respect to automatic renewal of all permits in residential and commercial areas, 


the City must create a verification process for proof of employment and 
income.  Gaming of permits has commenced and may increase. 


 
10. As under-parked housing is added within commercial districts, what is the policy for 


those residents and guests to be denied or given reliable access to parking within the 
district itself?  What is City policy governing commercial tenants being priced out of 
their on-site parking?  Examples are hiding in plain sight now.   
 
Attachment B. It is a current list of parking exceptions, exemptions and variances 
allowed for commercial and housing development. This is small sample of parking-lite 
incentives. The theory is that public transportation is available and acceptable to the 
majority of workers in Palo Alto.  The sustainability goals are laudable but unproven. 


 
11. Many new housing developments within the commercial cores do not provide sufficient 


on-site parking.  There is a pattern of excluding these residents from commercial core 
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parking and acquiring resident permits.  Owners and tenants of these housing 
properties have rights to buy residential parking permits to park anywhere in the 
RPP.  Should the commercial cores be taken out of the RPP boundaries and compete for 
available parking in the core?  There is a pattern of renters being denied parking 
privileges or being priced out. 


 
12. The Downtown RPP zones should be aligned with physical and long-established 


neighborhoods.  Currently, Zones 4 – 8 extend beyond the downtown business core and 
cross Middlefield Road into the Crescent Park neighborhood. These zones should be re-
aligned with both commercial and neighborhood boundaries, and all of Crescent Park 
should be resident only parking. 
 


13. On residential blocks where the city has eliminated on-street parking (e.g. some blocks 
of University, all of Middlefield, and likely more) the city should ensure residents of 
these blocks get a minimum of two free parking permits to be used near their homes. 


 
 
The Bigger Picture Awaits 


Two mega trends may become obvious within a year.  First, what are the assumptions 
regarding the degree to which the Palo Alto workforce will take public transportation?  Can Palo 
Alto’s bias for higher paid workers rely on the assumption of substantial use of public 
transit.  This may not mean a return to heavy SOV,  but it does suggest major changes in private 
transit. 
 
Second, work-from-home may be substantial and permanent on the Peninsula and South 
Bay.  This may result in a surplus of Class A office space and property tax reassessment.   Within 
a year we could see negative impact on city property tax receipts.  There may be an opportunity 
to convert office buildings to housing and rethink housing in Stanford Research Park. 
 


 
Respectfully Submitted: 
Allen Akin, Professorville 
Neilson Buchanan, Downtown North 
Wolfgang Dueregger, Evergreen Park 
John Guislin, Crescent Park 
Paul Machado, Evergreen Park 
Chris Robell, Old Palo Alto 
Carol Scott, Evergreen Park 
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20200407 Ord Amending 18.52 and 18.54 5  
 


(9)   Motorcycle parking shall not count towards the vehicle parking 
requirements outlined in Tables 1 and 2.  


 
[. . .] 


 
 
SECTION 5.  Section 18.52.045 (Minor Adjustments to Existing Parking Facilities) of Chapter 
18.52 (Parking and Loading Requirements) of Title 18 (Zoning) is hereby added as follows: 
 


18.52.045 Minor Adjustments to Existing Parking Facilities 
 
The following minor adjustments may be made to existing parking facilities that are 
intended to remain in substantially the same form after restriping. 
 
(a)   Accessibility and EVSE-related equipment.  For sites with existing development, the 
number on-site parking spaces may be reduced to the minimum extent necessary to: (1) 
achieve state or federally mandated accessibility requirements or (2) permit installation 
of electrical utility equipment required for EVSE. A maximum of 10% of the existing 
automobile parking stalls, or one stall, whichever is greater, may be removed pursuant 
to this section. The loss of a parking space is not permitted to accommodate EVSE itself.  
To the greatest extent feasible, electrical equipment required for EVSE shall be placed in 
a location that minimizes visibility from the public right of way. 
 
(b)   Substitution of bicycle parking.  For sites with existing development, at least two 
existing automobile parking spaces, up to a maximum of 10% of the existing automobile 
parking stalls, may be replaced by long- or short-term bicycle parking facilities.  A 
minimum of four long-term or eight short-term bicycle parking spaces per automobile 
parking space will be required. The bicycle parking spaces are to be located in the same 
physical location as the automobile spaces they are replacing, which shall be near 
primary entries of the building on-site or in locations that meet best practices for bicycle 
parking facilities. 
 


SECTION 6.  Table 4 (Allowable Parking Adjustments) of Section 18.52.050 (Adjustments by the 
Director) of Chapter 18.52 (Parking and Loading Requirements) of Title 18 (Zoning) is hereby 
amended as follows: 
 
 18.52.050   Adjustments by the Director 
 
 [. . .] 
 


Table 4 
Allowable Parking Adjustments 
 


4.b
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Purpose of 
Adjustment


Amount of Adjustment Maximum Reduction 2


On-Site Employee 
Amenities 
 


Square footage of commercial or 
industrial uses to be used for an on-site 
cafeteria, recreational facility, and/or 
day care facility, to be provided to 
employees or their children and not 
open to the general public, may be 
exempted from the parking 
requirements 
 


100% of requirement for 
on-site employee 
amenities 
 


Joint Use (Shared) 
Parking Facilities 


For any site or sites with multiple uses 
where the application of this chapter 
requires a total of or more than ten (10) 
spaces, the total number of spaces 
otherwise required by application of 
Table 1 may be reduced when the joint 
facility will serve all existing, proposed, 
and potential uses as effectively and 
conveniently as would separate parking 
facilities for each use or site. In making 
such a determination, the director shall 
consider a parking analysis using criteria 
developed by the Urban Land Institute 
(ULI) or similar methodology to estimate 
the shared parking characteristics of the 
proposed land uses. The analysis shall 
employ the city's parking ratios as the 
basis for the calculation of the base 
parking requirement and for the 
determination of parking requirements 
for individual land uses. The director 
may also require submittal and approval 
of a TDM program 1 to further assure 
parking reductions are achieved. 


20% of total spaces 
required for the site 
 


100% Affordable 
Housing (4) 


Based on maximum anticipated 
demand; applicant may request up to a 
100% reduction in parking. 


 


Affordable Housing 
Units and Single Room 
Occupancy (SRO) Units 
(3)  


The total number of spaces required 
may be reduced for affordable housing 
and single room occupancy (SRO) units, 
commensurate with the reduced 
parking demand created by the housing 
facility, including for visitors and 
accessory facilities. The reduction shall 
consider proximity to transit and 
support services and the director may 


a. 40% for 
Extremely Low 
Income and SRO 
Units 


b. 30% for Very Low 
Income Units 


c.   20% for Low 
Income Units 


4.b
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Purpose of 
Adjustment


Amount of Adjustment Maximum Reduction 2


require traffic demand management 
measures1 in conjunction with any 
approval. 


Housing Near Transit 
Facilities 


The total number of spaces required 
may be reduced for housing located 
within a designated Pedestrian/Transit 
Oriented area or elsewhere in 
immediate proximity to public 
transportation facilities serving a 
significant portion of residents, 
employees, or customers, when such 
reduction will be commensurate with 
the reduced parking demand created by 
the housing facility, including for visitors 
and accessory facilities, and subject to 
submittal and approval of a TDM 
program.1 


20% of the total spaces 
required for the site. 


 


Transportation and 
Parking Alternatives 
 


Where effective alternatives to 
automobile access are provided, other 
than those listed above, parking 
requirements may be reduced to an 
extent commensurate with the 
permanence, effectiveness, and the 
demonstrated reduction of off-street 
parking demand effectuated by such 
alternative programs. Examples of such 
programs may include, but are not 
limited to, transportation demand 
management (TDM) programs, or 
innovative parking pricing, increased 
bicycle or motorcycle access, or design 
solutions.1 (note: landscape reserve 
requirement is deleted). 


20% of the total spaces 
required for the site5 


 


Combined Parking 
Adjustments 
 


Parking reductions may be granted for 
any combination of the above 
circumstances as prescribed by this 
chapter, subject to limitations on the 
combined total reduction allowed. 


a.   30% reduction of the 
total parking demand 
otherwise required  
b.   40% reduction for 
affordable housing 
projects 


Modification to Off-
Street Loading 
Requirements 
 


The director may modify the quantity or 
dimensions of off-street loading 
requirements for non-residential 
development based on existing or 
proposed site conditions; availability of 


One loading space may 
be waived 


4.b
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Purpose of 
Adjustment


Amount of Adjustment Maximum Reduction 2


alternative means to address loading 
and unloading activity; and, upon 
finding that: 1) the off-street loading 
requirement may conflict with 
Comprehensive Plan goals and policies 
related to site design planning, 
circulation and access, or urban design 
principles; and 2) the use of shared on-
street loading would not conflict with 
Comprehensive Plan goals and policies 
related to site design planning, 
circulation and access or urban design 
principles; maximum reduction in one 
loading space. 


Restriping Existing 
Parking Facilities 


Existing parking facilities may be 
restriped in accordance with applicable 
provisions of the municipal code. The 
Director may approve a reduction in the 
number of required on-site parking 


management objectives, make 
improvements to on-site circulation, or 
bring substandard parking stalls into 
compliance with current design 
requirements. This provision applies 
only to sites with existing structures and 
existing parking facilities that are 
intended to remain in substantially the 
same form after re-striping of the 
facility. 


10% of the total spaces 
required for the site, or 
2 spaces, whichever is 
greater.  


 
(1) See Section 18.52.050(d) below regarding requirements for TDM programs. 


 
(2) No parking reductions may be granted that would result in provision of less than 


ten (10) parking spaces on site, except for 100% affordable housing projects. 
 
(3) No parking reductions may be granted for projects that are entitled to the 


reduced parking standards in Table 1 of Section 18.52.040 for senior housing. 
 
(4) Applies to 100% affordable housing projects and the residential component of 


100% affordable housing mixed-
used herein means a multiple-family housing project consisting entirely of 
affordable units, as defined in Section 16.65.020 of this code, available only to 
households with income levels at or below 120% of the area median income, as 
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



 7 

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
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20200407 Ord Amending 18.52 and 18.54 7  
 

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
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20200407 Ord Amending 18.52 and 18.54 8  
 

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
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From: John Guislin
To: Planning Commission
Subject: RPP Study Session
Date: Tuesday, May 26, 2020 1:42:54 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Be cautious
of opening attachments and clicking on links.

Commissioners:

Your study session on Wednesday May 27 is an important opportunity for you to to listen to
residents to understand the profound negative impact commercial parking has on residential
neighborhoods, e.g. traffic congestion, pollution, harried drivers, lack of parking for service
providers, etc.

When faced with the intrusion of commercial parking into residential areas, most
municipalities enact resident-only parking ordinances to protect quality of life for residents.
Palo Alto currently has two such districts, College Terrace and Old Palo Alto. However, Palo
Alto has chosen to create other RPP districts that allow substantial commercial parking in
residential neighborhoods and place a burden on residents to secure permits to park near their
own homes. There is no legal or moral basis to treat these neighborhoods differently and
unfairly.

Our local business community has resisted efforts encouraging them to accept that parking for
their employees is a cost of doing business and create solutions. Instead they have focused
their energies on denying the demands of residents to protect all of us in the same way rather
than develop and fund their own parking solutions.

What RPPs deliver is the return of a public asset, i.e. parking, to the public and an alignment
of a cost of doing business back to business owners.

Residents have fought to protect residential neighborhoods for decades and are not willing to
backtrack on the progress made to date.

Sincerely,

John Guislin

mailto:jguislin@gmail.com
mailto:Planning.Commission@cityofpaloalto.org


From: Jeanne Fleming
To: Fine, Adrian; DuBois, Tom; alisonlcormack@cityofpaloalto.org; Filseth, Eric (Internal); Kniss, Liz (internal); Kou,

Lydia; Tanaka, Greg
Cc: Clerk, City; Architectural Review Board; Planning Commission; board@pausd.org; health@paloaltopta.org
Subject: Modifications to zoning regulations
Date: Tuesday, May 26, 2020 8:42:25 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Be cautious
of opening attachments and clicking on links.

Dear Mayor Fine, Vice-Mayor DuBois, and Councilmembers Cormack, Filseth, Kniss,
Kou and Tanaka,
 
According to the Staff Report for today’s Council meeting, City Manager Shikada and
Senior Staff continue to recommend that you leave the door open for them to propose
“Modifications to local zoning regulations …. [in order to] streamline application
review, reducing the amount of time staff spends on each project and with public
engagement.”  (I am quoting language in the second “block” of page 9 of Attachment
A, Exhibit 1 in the Staff Report. )
 
I am writing to remind you that over sixty residents have written to Council
specifically to ask that you reject this recommendation. 
 
Why do residents care so much?  Because what Staff proposes would: 1) make it
easier, faster and cheaper for developers—developers of office buildings, of
residential multi-family dwellings, of cell towers and everything else—to push dubious
projects through the application review process; and 2) deny residents an opportunity
to add their input.  
 
Please do not endorse Staff’s attempt to use the COVID-19 pandemic to effect an
end run around the thoughtful provisions of the City’s Municipal Code generally and,
in particular, around the provisions of the Wireless Resolution you unanimously
approved only a few short months ago. 
 
Yours truly,
 
Jeanne Fleming
 
 
Jeanne Fleming, PhD
JFleming@Metricus.net
650-325-5151
 
 
 
 

mailto:jfleming@metricus.net
mailto:Adrian.Fine@CityofPaloAlto.org
mailto:Tom.DuBois@CityofPaloAlto.org
mailto:alisonlcormack@cityofpaloalto.org
mailto:Eric.Filseth@CityofPaloAlto.org
mailto:Liz.Kniss@CityofPaloAlto.org
mailto:Lydia.Kou@CityofPaloAlto.org
mailto:Lydia.Kou@CityofPaloAlto.org
mailto:Greg.Tanaka@CityofPaloAlto.org
mailto:city.clerk@cityofpaloalto.org
mailto:arb@cityofpaloalto.org
mailto:Planning.Commission@cityofpaloalto.org
mailto:board@pausd.org
mailto:health@paloaltopta.org
mailto:JFleming@Metricus.net


From: slevy@ccsce.com
To: North Ventura Coordinated Area Plan; Council, City; Planning Commission; French, Amy; Lait, Jonathan
Subject: attachment
Date: Monday, May 25, 2020 11:39:30 AM
Attachments: Item 5a 2 Attachment A Presentation v4.pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Be cautious
of opening attachments and clicking on links.

RHNA allocation criteria

mailto:slevy@ccsce.com
mailto:NVCAP@CityofPaloAlto.org
mailto:city.council@cityofpaloalto.org
mailto:Planning.Commission@cityofpaloalto.org
mailto:Amy.French@CityofPaloAlto.org
mailto:Jonathan.Lait@CityofPaloAlto.org



Update on Regional Housing Needs 
Allocation (RHNA) and Regional 


Early Action Program (REAP)
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Planning Committee
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RHNA Update: Housing 
Methodology Committee 


ABAG Regional Planning 
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May 6, 2020







COVID-19 Pandemic + Likely Recession:
Near-Term versus Longer-Term Impacts 


• RHNA: planning for ongoing need for housing at all income levels


• Requests for flexibility: delay of RHNA implementation requires action by the State


• ABAG will elevate local government concerns with state agencies and legislators
3


TODAY NEXT 1 TO 5 YEARS THROUGH 2030


PANDEMIC (LIKELY) RECESSION RECOVERY


Image Sources: CDC; Yahoo Finance; Flickr







HMC materials from March & April


• March HMC meeting:


• What we heard from community-based organizations


• Results of local jurisdiction survey


• Plan Bay Area 2050 update


• Continuing discussion of methodology factors


• Materials sent in April


• Fair housing report


• Summary of methodology options from March meeting


• Revised RHNA schedule
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CBO outreach: what community members said


• More housing needed everywhere for everyone


• Support for additional housing in high resource areas, with concerns


• Emphasis on linking jobs to housing and getting communities that haven’t 
stepped up to do more


• Housing near transit is good, but transit availability, reliability, safety and cost 
are concerns


• Need for funding/financing for affordable housing, re-invest in communities 
that are under-resourced and support new with resources/services


• Important to enforce RHNA plans with incentives or penalties to ensure housing
5







Local jurisdiction survey: housing and land use


• Jobs-housing fit: 85% stated their jurisdiction is imbalanced or very imbalanced


• No regional consensus about opportunities


• #1 constraint: construction costs (87% of respondents)


• Other constraints cited by a majority: availability of vacant land, funding 
for affordable housing, availability of construction workforce, land 
suitability, and availability of surplus public land


• Primary challenges to affordable housing: lack of local gap financing and 
available land 
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Local jurisdiction survey: fair housing


• Top factors contributing to fair housing issues


• Displacement of low-income and/or person-of-color (POC) residents


• Community opposition to development


• Lack of affordable housing, especially larger units


• Land use/zoning laws
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Methodology factors: overview
• March meeting: small group discussion to choose factors, assign weights to 


create methodology options


• Staff facilitators guided members through use of online visualization tool: 
https://rhna-factors.mtcanalytics.org/
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Methodology factors: top options
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Methodology factors: top options
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Methodology factors: top options
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Revised RHNA timeline
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Milestone Revised Deadline


HCD Regional Housing Need Determination Summer 2020


Plan Bay Area 2050 Draft Blueprint July 2020


Proposed RHNA methodology, draft subregion shares Fall 2020


Plan Bay Area 2050 Final Blueprint December 2020


Final subregion shares December 2020


Draft RHNA methodology to HCD for review Winter 2021


Final RHNA methodology, draft allocation Spring 2021


RHNA appeals Summer 2021


Final Plan Bay Area 2050 September 2021


Final RHNA allocation Winter 2021


Housing Element due date January 2023
Dates are tentative and subject to change
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Regional Early Action Planning 
Grants (REAP) Update


ABAG Regional Planning 
Committee


May 6, 2020
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Deadlines & New Resources
6TH Cycle RHNA


2017             2019-2020        Summer 2020           Fall 2020                 Spring 2021             Jan 2023 


SB 2 Grants Direct to Local Jurisdictions                            6/30/22 


LEAP Grants Direct to Local Jurisdictions                12/31/23 


REAP Grant to ABAG/MTC         12/31/23 


HCD “Pro-Housing” Designation


Legislative 
Housing 
Package 


Draft RHNA 
Methodology to 


HCD; Draft 
Allocations


Proposed 
RHNA 


Methodology


RHND
from
HCD


Budget Act
(LEAP & 
REAP) 


Housing 
Elements


Due
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$24M


LEAP 
$25.6M


REAP 
$23.9M


Direct 
Funding to 
Local 
Jurisdictions


Funding to 
Regional 


Government


State Funding to the Bay Area to plan for 
housing
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REAP Basics
Background:
 One-time regional funding to ABAG


 To assist with implementation of 
RHNA & accelerate housing 
production


HCD Administration:
 25% disbursement ($5.9M) to ABAG 


pending contract with HCD.


 ABAG must submit application for the 
remaining 75% ($18M) by 1/31/2021.


Next Steps:
 Spring 2020: Needs assessment 


of local jurisdictions for next 
Housing Element updates


 Summer 2020: Program design 


 Fall 2020: Apply to HCD for 
remaining 75% 


 By Early Winter 2020: Launch 
new regional housing program
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ABAG/MTC
Committed to 


Using REAP: 


 To enhance the RHNA process by 
supporting the Housing Methodology 
Committee and increasing engagement with 
local electeds, staff, and stakeholders


 To develop a new regional housing 
technical assistance program
 Technical assistance to jurisdictions to 


develop compliant housing elements.
 Technical assistance to support 


community engagement strategies 
related to “3 Ps” of housing:  Protection, 
Preservation, and Production 
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What should a 
regional housing 
technical assistance 
program look like?


Needs Assessment & Program Design
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Needs Assessment:  Who We’ve Talked To


Outreach to Date:
 ABAG General Assembly


 League of Cities City Managers 
Conference  


 Bay Area Planning Directors 
Association (BAPDA) – Steering 
Committee


 Small group discussion with every 
Planning Director in the Bay Area


 Pre-existing county-based 
Planning Directors’ meetings


Additional Outreach Planned:
 Local Elected Officials via Mayors’ 


Conferences and League of Cities 
Sub-regional Meetings (to the extent 
feasible per COVID-19)
 Webinars


 Overview of REAP for Local Electeds
and General Public


 Deep-dive on Housing Element Site 
Selection process for Local Staff


 Stakeholders and General Public
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Needs Assessment:  What We’ve Heard
Collaborative & Cohort-Based 
Approach 


 Knowledge sharing on policies and 
best practices, site analysis and 
strategies, funding, etc. 


 Tailored for variety of contexts


Regional Consultant Pool 
 Economies of scale 


 Reduced administrative burden on 
local staff


 Flexibility to craft locally-
appropriate policies and programs


Regional Coordination with HCD
 Template Documents 
 Data Packets
 Pre-Approved Site Feasibility 


Analysis?


Housing Leadership Development 
& Community Engagement


 Data-Driven Messaging  
 Outreach and Education 
 Focus Groups and Listening Sessions
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Next step: RFP for Master Consultant


“ABAG seeks to retain a master consultant to assist with 
its REAP program design, budgeting and implementation, 
including the recruiting and oversight of additional 
consultants.” 
Proposals shall not exceed $200,000, however, proposals 
may also include descriptions of additional proposed 
services and pricing should additional funding become 
available. 


See https://MTC.bonfirehub.com for details.



https://mtc.bonfirehub.com/





Thank You
For more information contact 


Gillian Adams, RHNA Manager, Regional Planning 
gadams@bayareametro.gov


Heather Peters, REAP Manager, Regional Planning
hpeters@bayareametro.com


abag.ca.gov/our-work/rhna-regional-housing-needs-allocation



mailto:gadams@bayareametro.gov
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

9

30% Equity
● Access to High-Opportunity Areas

60% Jobs
● Jobs Proximity - Auto
● Jobs-Housing Balance

10% Hazards

60% Equity
● Access to High-Opportunity Areas

20% Jobs
● Jobs-Housing Fit

10% Hazards
10% Transit

50% Equity
● Access to High-Opportunity Areas

40% Jobs
● Jobs Proximity - Transit
● Jobs-Housing Balance
● Jobs-Housing Fit
● Future Jobs

10% Transit

Comparison of three methodology options that received most votes

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%



Methodology factors: top options

10

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

Alameda Contra Costa Marin Napa San Francisco San Mateo Santa Clara Solano Sonoma

Housing / Jobs Crescent
Code Red to Address Housing Need
Balanced Equity - Job - Transportation
ABAG RHNA Cycle 5 (2013)
Plan Bay Area 2040 (2017) Household Growth



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
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SB 2 
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
Subject: NVCAP, RHNA and Housing in Palo Alto
Date: Monday, May 25, 2020 11:25:31 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Be cautious
of opening attachments and clicking on links.

Dear NVCAP working group members and city council and PTC members,

My two main points for NVCAP are 

1) a high target for housing in the NVCAP planning area is essential for meeting our new
RHNA targets and unique among available places for a substantial increase in housing

2) Meeting our common goal to increase housing for low and moderate income residents
can only be met with some increases in density. It is the only way to get enough units and
the only way to make projects feasible.

My conversations with HCD staff indicate that they have enhanced enforcement powers but
strongly prefer that cities exercise local control to meet their housing targets.

As the process unfolds I encourage council and PTC members to consult with the planning
director and city council on these issues.

I will elaborate on these points after tying the NVCAP plan to our RHNA and housing
element goals.

The language below is from the staff report for the PTC meeting on May 27, 2020 re ADUs.
But the essence applies to the North Ventura area. Both are critical pieces of the City's
effort to develop a local control plan that meets our Comp Plan and new RHNA targets.

From my professional work I know a good deal about the likely direction of new RHNA
targets for Palo Alto.

The state HCD is targeting early June for the release of the Bay Area RHNA determination
letter. So it should be known for the next NBCAP meeting in June.

Based on RHNA determinations for other regions and the new methodology that includes
"catch up" for overcrowded and cost burdened households, it is probable that the Bay Area
RHNA will be 2 to 3 times larger than the current one that Palo alto and most cities ares
struggling to meet.

Based on the three options for allocating the regional total to cities (see slide 12 in the
attachment) Palo Alto will receive an above average share of the regional total as we are 1)
a high amenity area and 2) have a large excess of jobs over housing.

"ADUs provide much needed housing for Palo Altans and play a significant role in the City's
efforts to meet its Regional Housing Needs Allocation targets.

Staff expect ADU development will be advanced further in the upcoming Housing Element
update. AB 671 requires that Housing Elements incentivize and promote the creation of
ADUs at all income levels. As the City prepares to develop and adopt an updated Housing
Element (must be adopted by January 2023), ADUs will play a large role."

There are several options before the NVCAP working group at this time. I encourage the
working group to refine and bring forward two or more substantial housing options.

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


It is important to remember a couple of points in developing these alternatives:

1) This is a long term plan and what particular members or landowners think is feasible in
the next year to two or three is irrelevant to the working group task or to the City's
responsibility to make a best and extra effort to make housing work.

2) The development math and the unit count math does not work without some increases in
density similar to the many beautiful 4 and 5 story buildings I see every day in my walks.

My final point is about making housing for low income residents (a major feature of the
increased RHNA totals) work in practice.

I encourage the working group to hear from staff at Alta Housing (the new name for PAH)
and remember what was needed to make Wilton Court possible. And that is getting
sufficient density relative to parcel size to make projects feasible and to maximize the
number of deed restricted units associated with market rate projects.

Stephen Levy

Director Center for Continuing Study of the California Economy

50 year resident of Palo Alto



From: Palo Alto Forward
To: North Ventura Coordinated Area Plan; Moitra, Chitra
Cc: Planning Commission; Council, City
Subject: NVCAP Comments regarding Alternatives
Date: Friday, May 22, 2020 12:47:40 PM
Attachments: NVCAP Alternatives .pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Be cautious
of opening attachments and clicking on links.

Dear Mayor Fine and Palo Alto City Council Members and the NVCAP Working Group,
 
Palo Alto Forward (PAF) is a nonprofit organization of Palo Alto residents that envisions a 
more affordable, sustainable city with improved housing and transportation options for our 
diverse, multi-generational residents. We believe in thoughtful planning to meet our city’s 
future population needs. 

The North Ventura Coordinated Area Plan (NVCAP) is a rare opportunity to simultaneously 
address our housing shortage and climate change goals. The 60 acres encompassing the 
NVCAP is ideally located next to bus, rail, bike paths, El Camino Real, and the California 
Avenue business district making it an ideal place to build multifamily housing. 
 
The NVCAP is a unique opportunity area to meet the City’s existing Comp Plan goals to 
increase housing and will be the City’s largest opportunity to meet the higher RHNA goals 
that are coming--goals that address the cost burdens and overcrowding of existing 
residents in our region. 
 
While we understand the economic challenges in today’s environment, the NVCAP is a 
plan for the future and we can provide greater flexibility in uses, densities and designs in 
order to meet changing conditions. With that, we ask that you consider the following criteria 
in evaluating NVCAP alternatives: 
 

More housing is critical and must include diverse housing types, including market rate 
and affordable homes with multifamily buildings and housing types that are affordable 
by design and offer opportunities for people of various income levels to live in our 
city. 

Subsidized affordable rentals and homeownership options must be incorporated 
throughout the neighborhood. 

Mixed use development should include a balance of housing and commercial space, 
with flexibility for types of use within commercial spaces. 

mailto:palo.alto.fwd@gmail.com
mailto:NVCAP@CityofPaloAlto.org
mailto:Chitra.Moitra@CityofPaloAlto.org
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May 22, 2020 
 
To: Palo Alto City Council, NVCAP Working Group 
Re: NVCAP Working Group Alternatives  
 
Dear Mayor Fine and Palo Alto City Council Members and the NVCAP Working Group, 
 
Palo Alto Forward (PAF) is a nonprofit organization of Palo Alto residents that envisions a more 
affordable, sustainable city with improved housing and transportation options for our diverse, 
multi-generational residents. We believe in thoughtful planning to meet our city’s future 
population needs.  
 
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
increase housing and will be the City’s largest opportunity to meet the higher RHNA goals that 
are coming--goals that address the cost burdens and overcrowding of existing residents in our 
region.  
 
While we understand the economic challenges in today’s environment, the NVCAP is a plan for 
the future and we can provide greater flexibility in uses, densities and designs in order to meet 
changing conditions. With that, we ask that you consider the following criteria in evaluating 
NVCAP alternatives:  
  


- More housing is critical and must include diverse housing types, including market rate 
and affordable homes with multifamily buildings and housing types that are affordable by 
design and offer opportunities for people of various income levels to live in our city.  


- Subsidized affordable rentals and homeownership options must be incorporated 
throughout the neighborhood.  


- Mixed use development should include a balance of housing and commercial space, 
with flexibility for types of use within commercial spaces.  


- North Ventura has a large number of underutilized parcels. In order to allow for parcel 
assembly and street/path reconfigurations, zoning must allow for flexibility. 







- In order for Palo Alto to meet higher RHNA allocations in a revised Housing Element 
(2023-2031), the city must select viable development sites for new homes. The Ventura 
Neighborhood and NVCAP can be an important part of the solution. 


 
Thank you for considering these points during the evaluation of Alternatives.  
 
Sincerely,  
Palo Alto Forward Board of Directors 
 







North Ventura has a large number of underutilized parcels. In order to allow for parcel 
assembly and street/path reconfigurations, zoning must allow for flexibility.

In order for Palo Alto to meet higher RHNA allocations in a revised Housing Element 
(2023-2031), the city must select viable development sites for new homes. The 
Ventura Neighborhood and NVCAP can be an important part of the solution.

 
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
To: Council, City; Planning Commission
Cc: Shikada, Ed; Lait, Jonathan; Kamhi, Philip; Carey White; Dennis Richards; Bill Johnson; Jocelyn Dong; Dave

Price; Jon Mays
Subject: Opinion: Future of Teleworking
Date: Thursday, May 21, 2020 12:54:01 PM
Attachments: 200521 Facebook Long Term Plans for Wrok at HJome SVBJ May 21 2020.pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Be cautious
of opening attachments and clicking on links.

Dear Palo Alto City Council, Planning Commission and Staff,

Here is a very informed, national expert's opinion.  I hope you will take time to scan
this presentation.

The implications to SOV, Caltrain, VTA and commute patterns are great.  The
implications to vacant Class A office space on the Peninsula are profound.

Also see the attached latest news release from Facebook re work at home.

Kate Lister's Presentation to Livable California Shows us the Future of Teleworking

Neilson Buchanan
155 Bryant Street
Palo Alto, CA  94301
 
650 329-0484
650 537-9611 cell
cnsbuchanan@yahoo.com

Kate Lister's Presentation to Livable California
Shows us the Future of ...
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From: Neilson Buchanan
To: Lait, Jonathan; Planning Commission
Subject: Private Equity Is Ruining Health Care, Covid Is Making It Worse - Bloomberg
Date: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 1:48:38 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Be cautious of opening attachments and clicking
on links.
________________________________

https://www.bloomberg.com/news/features/2020-05-20/private-equity-is-ruining-health-care-covid-is-making-it-
worse

Coming to Palo Alto sooner than you think.  Impacting dentistry too   Unfortunate trend beyond current land use
controls.  One solution is greater supply of land zoned for health services to reduce cost of leasing offices
Sent from my iPhone
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From: Suzanne Keehn
To: Council, City; Shikada, Ed; Clerk, City; Planning Commission; Architectural Review Board
Subject: Budget
Date: Monday, May 18, 2020 4:39:13 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Be cautious
of opening attachments and clicking on links.

To the Palo Alto City Council,

I commend yo all for surviving the 3 day marathon you had last week on
the
budget. I'm sure you needed a couple of off days after that effort.

I filled out two surveys, indicating that our community service were most
important, and supportive
for so many of us residents.  Especially necessary is supporting creativity
of our young people.  I heard
when listening some of the time last week, two high school students, I
believe, speaking to support
a program that both got so much from, creativity, community, even if on
line.  Plus they were learning
a lot.  Funding for the Children's Theater, College Terrace Library, even for
3 days a week.
Nature, which has had a chance to breath during this stay in place order,
is reviving.  Keep the Baylands
paths and interpretative center open. Nature is necessary for our health.

Take care of the mental health of our teens and adults, please keep the
Suicide Prevention program. My younger granddaughter, when through
this recently and getting help, is very expensive.  Anything we can do to
support 
the mental health of our community is more than worth the money it
takes.

No one I know feels that the infrastructure planned is a current necessity. 
In fact we do not as yet, know how
this pandemic will effect P.A. and other cities as far as needing more
buildings.  Most of what you've planned
to include has waited for awhile, and waiting another year or so will save a
lot of money.

Please review the plan for street maintenance, and find some cuts that
could save some money. With the changes we are experiencing, and the
effects on what we will experience, we don't need an El Camino Pedestrian
Plan. Can money be  found in the City parking Lot Maintenance?  What
about staff reductions in the City Manager's office, I believe there are 10
staff at present.

mailto:dskeehn@pacbell.net
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From what I've been reading and listening to, office buildings will not be
needed.  Even Google is rethinking how best to use their workforce.  Many
are seeing that working from home is efficient, and productive, and that
perhaps going to a 2 1/2 day week is better for them and their employees.

One project that should be supported, going ahead with the plans, is the
historic Roth Building, it has a great history and now to support a Palo Alto
History Museum is a good idea, and would probably be best to continue
now, before everything gets more expensive.

Sincerely,

Suzanne Keehn
Orme St.
94306



From: slevy@ccsce.com
To: Council, City; Planning Commission
Cc: Shikada, Ed
Subject: my blog supporting a careful reopening in support of our struggling small businesses
Date: Sunday, May 17, 2020 11:27:05 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Be cautious
of opening attachments and clicking on links.

https://www.paloaltoonline.com/blogs/p/2020/05/12/i-support-helping-our-local-small-
businesses-start-to-reopen-quickly-and
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